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ON THE COVERS:
Avaya Internet Protocol-based infrastructure solutions and applications are
used increasingly to carry video, telephone calls, and all forms of data and
Web traffic, while Avaya wireless communication solutions provide enterprises
with enhanced mobility options. On the front and back covers, Avaya solutions
help an architect and her clients monitor and discuss the progress of a new
building, while accessing and collaborating on related data.

Enterprising. At Avaya, it describes our singular focus on serving the world’s 
enterprises: businesses, government agencies, educational institutions and nonprofits.

Hundreds of thousands of enterprises use Avaya communications systems, applications, and
services to meet their customers’ needs, and to excel in their ventures. 

Avaya holds the #1 position in
these selected markets.*

LEADERSHIP

*Market figures based on reports issued
by independent industry analysts in 2001

†Percentage based on compilation of
regional reports issued by independent
industry analysts in 2001

Revenue forecasts for
selected markets**

HIGH-GROWTH
OPPORTUNITIES

**Market forecasts based on reports
issued by independent industry analysts
in 2001

CAGR is Compound Annual Growth Rate

Enterprising also describes how we plan to leverage our customer base and market opportunity to
drive revenue growth and profitability. We are extending our current leadership positions into next-
generation solutions, technologies and services.

How big is Avaya’s market opportunity? The world’s enterprises spend almost US$125 billion on
communications technology and services annually, projected to grow to $192 billion by 2004.**
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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:

When Avaya became an independent company on
September 30, 2000, we knew that our first year – like any
company’s first year – would be challenging. As it turned out,
no one at that time could have anticipated just how challeng-
ing 2001 would prove to be.

Fortunately, the near-term strategy we declared to
investors at the time of our spin-off was, by design, a strat-
egy for challenging times. We committed to a three-year
restructuring program that would drive increased profitability
by taking costs out of the business and keeping them out.
The savings and efficiencies produced by our restructuring
work would fuel reinvestment in key areas of the business
such as selective strategic acquisitions, innovative research
and development from Avaya Labs and other sources, and
the higher-growth segments of our addressable market. 

T H E  T H R E E  R s

Restructuring … reinvestment … revenue growth. Our
employees quickly dubbed this strategy “the three Rs.” It
was a “back to basics” approach, designed to restructure
and reposition our company to take advantage of anticipated
growth in the global enterprise market.

During our first two fiscal quarters, we made strong
progress in all “three Rs.” We reduced expenses by
$100 million in the first quarter alone. We reinvested, aug-
menting our portfolio in the key growth segments of virtual
private networking and customer relationship management
(CRM) with the acquisitions of VPNet Technologies, Inc. and
Quintus Corporation. We grew revenues in several key market
segments, increasing our Internet Protocol (IP) port ship-
ments and bringing in strong results in data networking,
Connectivity Solutions and sales outside the United States.

In our third fiscal quarter, as the global economy – espe-
cially the market for information technology – deteriorated, our
back-to-basics strategy served us well, enabling us to antici-
pate and respond to changing economic conditions.

In late May and early June, we saw a widening slowdown in
customer purchases across nearly all our product segments.
Accordingly, we lowered our revenue outlook for fiscal 2001.
At the same time, we recognized that we could balance the
pressure on the third “R” – revenue growth – by bearing down
more aggressively on the first, restructuring.

We accelerated our restructuring plan with the goal of com-
pleting it by the end of fiscal 2002, one year earlier than we
had originally stated. We also began to eliminate a significant
number of jobs through a combination of involuntary and vol-
untary separations, including an early retirement program tar-
geted to U.S. management employees.

The industrywide slowdown continued through our fourth
fiscal quarter. In October, we revised downward our outlook
for both revenue and earnings per share (EPS).

But even with these challenges, we ended the year with prog-
ress to report in many key areas. We executed on our restruc-
turing plan, delivered positive EPS from ongoing operations,
gained market share in key segments, and continued to invest

in research and development (R&D) for the next generation of
enterprise communications products and services.

We outsourced many of our non-core processes, including
payroll, procurement, and much of our manufacturing operations.

We have made significant progress in establishing global
strategic partnerships. And we have shown that we can
successfully collaborate with these partners to bring real busi-
ness solutions to our customers. We refined and retooled our
sales force and multichannel sales strategy, focusing our
direct sales efforts on our largest global accounts and
strengthening our indirect sales channel to provide high-
quality service to smaller and regional accounts.

We successfully introduced new products, notably the 
Avaya ECLIPS family of Enterprise-Class IP Solutions, and won
awards from customer and industry groups around the world in
growth areas including CRM, IP telephony and wireless data. 

We reduced our employee population from 31,000 to
23,000, while retaining many of our highest performers,
including virtually all the talent that joined Avaya with the
acquisitions of VPNet and Quintus. We continued to hire in
key areas such as sales, R&D, and data services. 

We are building a working environment – a culture, if you
will – that Avaya employees can be proud to call their own. In
a recent study of more than 500 publicly traded companies,
Avaya scored 97 out of a possible 100 in such human
resource practices as rewards, training, communications,
development, and recruiting.

Even though revenues from ongoing operations for fiscal
2001 were down 9.3 percent year over year, we increased
diluted EPS from ongoing operations by 20 percent over the
previous year, and exited the year at an annual selling, gen-
eral, and administrative (SG&A) run rate more than $600 mil-
lion less than our total SG&A expense in fiscal 2000. 

C O M M I T T E D  T O  M A N A G E M E N T  D I S C I P L I N E

We have engineered those savings into the way we run the
business, and we are committed to sustaining the manage-
ment discipline we have demonstrated. The actions we have
taken to date position us for health and growth even in the
face of continuing economic challenges.

D O N A L D  K .  P E T E R S O N
President and Chief Executive Officer
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customers, partners, and suppliers may be half a world away
geographically but expect immediate delivery of transactions
and information. 

They are faced with mounting pressure to improve busi-
ness performance by meeting increased expectations for pro-
ductivity, security, cost control, and stability. 

At Avaya, we believe these trends are more than transfor-
mative. They are liberating. They open up new possibilities for
growth and creativity within new business models. They allow
us to meet the needs of our enterprise customers by helping
them focus on their own customers’ needs. 

They also guide us in our ongoing effort to create the
business model and organizational structure that are best
aligned to take advantage of growth opportunities. Effective
January 1, 2002, we implemented a broad internal reorgani-
zation. We created four business groups: applications, sys-
tems, services, and connectivity. This should yield a number
of benefits in how we go to market and run our business. It
should also help the outside world – particularly the invest-
ment community – understand what we do.

But we are careful not to let internal organizations and
reorganizations become ends in themselves. Our view must
always point outward, to the customer and the stockholder. In
that context, I’ve referred in recent months to the “customer
economy.” By that, I mean that it is ultimately the customer
who will determine the value of what is bought and sold as
well as how new technology is delivered and at what pace. By
serving the enterprise communications market, Avaya is in
the business of fueling the customer economy. 

We serve enterprises by helping them enable their own
customers to do business, to perform, to succeed. 

T H E  R I G H T  M A R K E T,  T H E  R I G H T  T I M E

Some people might say it takes an inveterate optimist 
to look out on the world at the end of 2001 and see great
opportunity. I say that it is as much realism as optimism. 
I am convinced that Avaya is in the right market at the 
right time. 

We have the right strategy and the right focus to address
this market opportunity. 

We have a portfolio of world-class products and solutions,
and they’re getting stronger every day. 

We have relationships with some of the best suppliers,
outsourcers, and strategic partners in the industry, and we’re
committed to expanding and building on those relationships
and others.

We have employees who have chosen to stay with us, who
are committed to our customers and our success.

If that isn’t an enterprising attitude, I don’t know what is.

There are areas of immediate and significant growth
opportunity which Avaya is well positioned to capture. One 
is IP communication, where we intend to lead with our
ECLIPS portfolio and evolutionary approach to helping cus-
tomers make voice and data work together reliably and cost-
effectively. Another is communications applications, where
we already enjoy leadership positions, market share, and
mind share in the CRM and messaging segments. Our
customers’ heightened focus on security, reliability, and 
total cost of ownership is stimulating appreciation for the
value delivered by our services capability, particularly
professional services.

Our customers know that even in a constrained economic
climate, continued investment in the right places is a key to
survival. Areas such as IP telephony, applications, and serv-
ices have three key attributes: strong customer demand, dra-
matic market growth prospects, and a significant competitive
advantage for Avaya. We are pursuing such opportunities,
making sure that our investment in product development and
marketing is aligned with solutions that meet customers’
need to extract performance and profitability from a less-
than-receptive market environment. 

S T R O N G  P O S I T I O N

Looking beyond immediate opportunities, I expect Avaya to
be in a strong position to capitalize on revitalized market
opportunity when the economy begins to recover, for three
reasons: 

First, because we’ve proven our ability to manage our
expenses in line with our revenue, and we’re committed to
sustaining that discipline. 

Second, because communication remains essential to
enterprises worldwide. They understand that their ability 
to make fast, powerful decisions and transactions and to
compete successfully in a changing environment depends 
on the quality of their communications solutions and of 
their vendors.

And third, because we understand that the enterprises of
the world are arguably the most important drivers of the
global economy. From multinational corporations to commu-
nity colleges, they are the hope and laboratories of the
future. It is their mission to excel, just as it is Avaya’s mis-
sion to provide the world’s best communications solutions
that enable them to do so. The engine of enterprises may
downshift temporarily in response to extreme circumstances,
but our customers are driven to move forward, and they will
bring the partners they trust along with them. 

But that is only part of the story. Today, enterprises around
the world are facing challenges even more daunting than a
temporary economic contraction. The world they live in is
changing radically, and they are finding themselves beset by
three powerful, transformative trends:

They are struggling to deliver access … to create and
deploy efficient enterprise communications networks in a
world of proliferating platforms and devices, and ever-increas-
ing user demand for ubiquitous communications capability. 

They are working to create new business models that max-
imize the value of virtual enterprises, in which employees,

D O N A L D  K .  P E T E R S O N

President and Chief Executive Officer

December 14, 2001
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Effective Tax Rate*
(Target = 34.5 to 36.5%)

’00 ’01

38.0%39.5%Operating Margin 
Percentage*
(Target = 10.1 to 12.1%)

’00 ’01

5.2%

4.1%

Research and 
Development  
Percentage*
(Target = 8.3 to 10.3%)

’00 ’01

7.9%

6.3%

Selling, General and  
Administrative  
Percentage*
(Target = 21.7 to 24.7%)

’00 ’01

29.5%
31.7%Gross Margin  

Percentage*
(Target = 43.6 to 44.6%)

’00 ’01

42.6%42.1%

Diluted EPS* 

’00 ’01

$0.66

$0.55

Net Income* 
($ in millions)

’00 ’01

$214

$156

Revenue*
($ in millions)

’00 ’01

$6,793
$7,487

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
(dollars and shares in millions, except per-share amounts)

Tables reconcile “As reported” results, derived from audited consolidated financial statements, with “Ongoing” results, providing an alternative for
understanding Avaya’s operating results.

Year ended September 30, 2001 Year ended September 30, 2000
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

As reported Adjustments(a) Ongoing As reported Adjustments(b) Ongoing
���������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������

Revenue $6,793 $ – $6,793 $7,732 $(245) $7,487 
Gross margin 2,896 – 2,896 3,249 (100) 3,149 
Selling, general and administrative 2,058 (48) 2,010 2,540 (167) 2,373 
Research and development 536 – 536 468 – 468 
Operating income (loss) (567) 917 350 (443) 751 308 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (218) 351 133 (73) 175 102 
Net income (loss) (352) 566 214 (375) 531 156 

Earnings (loss) per share – diluted $ (1.33) $ 0.66 $ (1.39) $ 0.55
Diluted shares 284 286 269 283
Effective tax rate – provision (benefit) (38.3%) 38.0% (16.3%) 39.5%

Notes:
(a) 2001 adjustments remove the pre-tax effects of the following: (1) $48 million of start-up expenses associated with establishing independent operations; (2) $837 million

of business restructuring and related charges; and (3) $32 million of purchased in-process research and development in connection with certain acquisitions. The post-tax
effect of these items is $566 million.

(b) 2000 adjustments remove the pre-tax effects of the following: (1) $245 million of revenue and $145 million of costs attributable to the operations of a U.S. sales division
that was sold and a wire installation business that was exited; (2) $167 million of operating expenses of the U.S. sales division noted above and start-up expenses associ-
ated with establishing independent operations; (3) $684 million of business restructuring and related charges; and (4) a $45 million gain also related to the sale of the
U.S. sales division noted above. The post-tax effect of these items is $531 million.

TARGET
IMPROVEMENT
METRICS
In September 2000 we committed to
improve in these five areas, and to report
on our progress. Gross Margin and SG&A
target dates are end of fiscal 2002; other
target dates are end of fiscal 2003. All are
based on results from ongoing operations
and represent percentages of revenue,
except for effective tax rate.

*Represents ongoing operations.

KEY RESULTS
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A

B

C

Acquisitions of VPNet and
Quintus; Unified
Messaging sale to
Microsoft Corporation;
CRM sales to Home Depot,
Inc. and QVC, Inc.; data
networking sales to Nissan
Mexicana and the Electric
Power Control Center in
China; next-generation IP
products announced.

Help enterprises solve
their communication
needs with a combination
of evolutionary and 
transforming infrastructure
and applications 
solutions; incorporate
industry-leading security
solutions; increase 
global sales.  

FY 2002 FOCUS

Customer relationship man-
agement, unified communi-
cation, professional
services, installation, voice
software, integration labora-
tories, enterprise voice and
data convergence systems,
local and wide area net-
works, wireless networking,
conferencing, virtual private 
networks, security products,
and network management.

KEY PRODUCTS & SOLUTIONS

Remote network reliability
services launched in
Europe, Middle East and
Africa; groundbreaking 
variable workforce agree-
ment; voice-messaging
management contract 
with Ameritech Corporation;
business-recovery work fol-
lowing the Sept. 11, 2001, 
terrorist attacks.

Continue transition to 
high-tech services support;
expand managed and 
professional services pres-
ence; pursue contracts
with enterprises that do
not have Avaya equipment;
increase use of exclusive
tools and large, flexible
workforce.

Enterprise-network 
consulting; assessments;
management; mainte-
nance; repair; remote 
monitoring and repair; 
dedicated on-site staffing;
technical hotlines. 

Sale of 150 million feet 
of copper cable to TSI Inc.;
provider of 180,000 feet 
of high-speed LAN cabling 
in project to equip the 
USS Missouri battleship
museum for video and
Internet traffic.

Deliver products that 
support the transition 
to higher-bandwidth network-
ing from service providers to
enterprises, down to the
desktop. 

Structured copper cabling
systems; structured 
fiber-optic cabling systems;
electronic cabinets.

Developed and released
infrared IP phone dialing
from a personal digital
assistant (PDA); released 
security innovations for
wireless local area net-
works (LANs), remote 
service monitoring and 
Web servers.

Create and enhance appli-
cations for IP, customer
relationship management,
messaging, personalized
information portals, busi-
ness infrastructure and
architectures, Web centers,
hosted solutions, data 
networks and services.

AVAYA LABS

FY2001 REVENUES

AVAYA AT A GLANCE

Supports other Avaya units 
by providing basic research
and product and service
development. Owns or has
filed 1,600 patents and
patent applications across
its solutions portfolio.

A. Communications Solutions: $3.38 billion (49.7%)
B. Services: $2.09 billion (30.8%)
C. Connectivity Solutions: $1.32 billion (19.5%)

FY 2001 HIGHLIGHTS

COMMUNICATIONS SOLUTIONS

SERVICES

CONNECTIVITY SOLUTIONS
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Three fundamental trends are shaping

the communication needs of enterprises and the

solutions Avaya provides: 

Desire for access to and from any device,

anywhere, for any transaction. Increasingly, enter-

prises are creating fast, effective linkages with

customers, consumers, employees, and suppliers.

Drive toward virtualization. Enterprises

are exploiting communication technology to 

create flexible, “vir tual” resources and capabilities.

Demand for operational performance.
Volatile markets, global instability, and rapid techno-

logical change require enterprises to reduce costs

and strengthen security, while increasing throughput.

Avaya solutions and services address these

trends, helping enterprises reach their potential at

the pace they select. In the following pages we

explain how.
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ENTERPRISE TREND 1 

Access

Avaya helps extend, unify, and 
simplify communication 
options to allow transactions 
to take place over a multitude of
devices, from almost anywhere
in the world

With Avaya messaging, people 
on the go can check voicemail,
faxes and e-mail on an array 
of PDAs and other devices.
Inset: Messages displayed on 
a PDA with Avaya Unified
Messenger®.
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ENTERPRISING TECHNOLOGY 
Avaya Labs is focusing on the next generation of technology 
to empower our customers. Key research areas: 1. Converged
voice and data communication over IP networks. Beyond
Internet telephony, IP communication holds great promise for
enhancing personalized communication. Its growth will be
sped and enhanced by Session Initiation Protocol (SIP), an
upcoming technology that will allow for seamless integration
across devices, locations, and media. 2. Speech and 

multimedia technologies, to allow speech access over 
any device, from anywhere, using conversational dialogue.
3. Data analysis, which will help drive the next advances in
remote monitoring and management, customer relation-
ship management, and data mining. 4. Quality of Service, 
to ensure the quality of IP telephony. 5. Security, ranging 
from authentication to securing endpoints, applications, 
and networks.

ccess – to data and people – takes on ever-broader
meaning as devices proliferate, speeds escalate, and

expectations of users rise. A robust variety of access options
for customers, prospects, employees, and others is the price
of admission to a marketplace increasingly reliant on current
and even real-time information. 

It’s the ability to always hear opportunity knocking – even
when the knock arrives as a data message. 

Our high-quality telephony systems set the original stan-
dards in enterprise access. Today, we offer award-winning
data equipment and software applications that allow users to
read voicemail messages; listen to e-mail messages; dial a
telephone with one press on a PDA device; and reach just the
right catalog sales representative on the first ring.

At Avaya Labs, you’ll find some of the people who invented
voicemail, one of the great liberating advances in enterprise
access history. Today our unified communication offers allow
people to reach and respond to all of their incoming mes-
sages through their choice of communications medium from
office, home, or while on the move. With our new speech-
access solutions, they can even get messages and manage
their Microsoft® Exchange calendars using conversational
phrases over any phone. 

Retailers use Avaya multimedia contact center solutions to
help customers transact business quickly and efficiently, and
in the form they desire. Customers can interact via voice
calls, e-mail, text chats, Web collaborations and even faxes.
Exclusive call-routing software developed by Avaya Labs
assesses each incoming call and sends it to an agent who
has the appropriate skills to satisfy the customer. 

The traditional telephone call is evolving too, as enterprises

incorporate Internet Protocol (IP) technology into their com-
munications environments. Avaya is a leader in making the
evolution smooth. The Avaya Enterprise Class IP Solutions
(ECLIPS) product family breaks down the barriers between
voice and data, extending existing infrastructures or replacing
them. The newest IP servers from Avaya can connect to, and
work with, decades-old office-system switches. 

We’re now rolling out IP systems for small businesses,
too, increasing their access capabilities.

Data communications is one of the fastest-growing
aspects of the Avaya portfolio, as enterprises look for ways
to improve access to sales figures, payroll records and other
kinds of data on their networks. Our flagship multiservice
backbone switch supports data, video, and voice, and con-
nects large numbers of users on high-speed connections.
We’re rolling out cutting-edge 10-gigabit Ethernet and cabling,
networking systems that increase enterprises’ capabilities
for bandwidth-intensive applications such as video and
remote data storage.

We’ll continue to pursue ways to make enterprise access
even more intelligent and dynamic than it is today. 

Avaya Labs researchers and developers are creating new
applications with emerging technologies such as Session
Initiation Protocol. SIP is a new tool that will, for example,
help enable users to use any SIP-enabled device to reach
other SIP users on the most appropriate access device at the
time, automatically – whether that’s a mobile phone, desk
phone, pager, fax, computer, or telephony-enabled PDA. And
because it’s a simple protocol borrowing from Internet stan-
dards, SIP services generally can be implemented inexpen-
sively, rapidly, and widely.

MasterCard International employs
Avaya systems and software in 
24 locations around the world. 
At its operations headquarters in
St. Louis, Mo., workers help
process up to 26 million authori-
zations a day, and monitor and
troubleshoot the company’s
global transaction network.

The Avaya™ 4630 IP Screenphone,
pictured here, features a touch-
screen that enables message
retrieval and Web access. 
The entire 4600 series of IP tele-
phones can be dialed with a 
tap on the directory entry of a
Palm™ PDA. 

A
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Working from her home – 40 miles 
from her company’s nearest call 
center – an Alliance Data Systems 
customer-service representative answers
inquiries. Avaya offers several options 
to enterprises looking for vir tual solutions,
so remote workers can have the same 
features and functionality they would 
have if they were in the office. 
Inset: Detail of Avaya™ IP Agent screen.

Avaya helps enterprises 
expand their operations without
expanding their size

ENTERPRISE TREND 2

Virtualization
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o enterprise can be everywhere at once or do everything
on its own. Vir tualization through communication 

enables an enterprise to reach more customers, enlarge the
workforce pool, improve security, and obtain services
unavailable nearby.

Avaya meets the need for vir tualization with a variety of
solutions. The remote-agent solution depicted on the facing
page relies on Avaya™ IP Agent. Alliance Data Systems –
which placed and received more than 11 million customer
calls a month in 2001 – began a work-at-home program for
agents in the spring. It now has dozens of agents using the
Avaya solution, contributing to improved employee produc-
tivity, morale, and retention.

The Avaya DEFINITY® voice system can extend on the fly to
employees’ homes, the road, and other virtual offices, giving
people true one-number “reachability.”

Virtual-private-networking (VPN) solutions from Avaya offer
similar functionality for workers, customers, and suppliers
accessing enterprise intranets from home or the road. Secure
solutions include gateways between types of networks, fire-
walls for security, and other components for customers large
and small. A pharmaceutical company using our VPN technol-
ogy to provide product information to people in 94 countries
reduced its networking cost by more than 70 percent, while
increasing the system’s quality and reliability.

Virtualization not only conquers distance; it also can 
work wonders in individual locations. Avaya wireless data-
networking solutions give workers and students the ability to
roam campus environments and get full-performance connec-
tions to their networks through a small transmitting card.
Universities warm to wireless networking as an alternative to
rewiring old freestanding buildings. 

Avaya wireless solutions can be used indoors or outdoors,
in hospitals, airports, warehouses, or anywhere people move
about frequently but need constant availability. Avaya wireless
data solutions use three levels of security incorporating strict
controls, encryption and stringent authentication procedures.

Security is also a strong suit of our videoconferencing and
multimedia collaboration offers, which allow people to meet
face to face, view critical information, and work on docu-
ments together. Avaya has installed more than 10,000
videoconferencing systems for a wide variety of enterprises,
and is building for the future with video over IP and software
that will let conferees add participants as easily as calling 
in a colleague from down the hall.

Vir tualization extends to support staff for enterprises that
take advantage of Avaya Services, delivered remotely or on
site, and spanning a range of expertise. Our remote techni-
cians monitor customer data and voice networks and fix
them from hundreds of miles away. Avaya Exper t Systems,
developed by Avaya Labs personnel, can even solve many
network problems without human intervention. 

We maintain and repair competitors’ equipment as well
as our own, according to the terms of each of our more-than
400,000 maintenance service contracts. Many large cus-
tomers enjoy dedicated teams of on-site Avaya technicians
who act as vir tual employees. 

Many enterprises outsource communications to special-
ized service providers (xSP) as a quick route to vir tualiza-
tion, which can improve their productivity and allow them to
focus on core competencies. So we partner with xSPs to
offer hosted and managed solutions, bringing enterprises
on-demand applications and services.

Avaya wireless data networks help
bring secure, high-speed access
to people at corporations and col-
leges, including the 26,000 stu-
dents, faculty, and administrators
at The University of Tennessee’s
Knoxville campus.

In Russia, operators at the
St. Petersburg Information
Company use Avaya CRM solu-
tions to answer calls, messages,
and Internet contacts for enter-
prise customers, giving those
enterprises virtual presence.

N
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The New York Stock Exchange keeps five Avaya technicians, including
Rich Sesny, on site for day-to-day operations. After the Sept. 11, 2001,
terrorist attacks on New York City shut down the financial district, 40
Avaya technicians worked round the clock to help the Exchange reopen
for trading. In New York and Washington, D.C., 400 Avaya technicians
moved or installed more than 40,000 phones and 20,000 voice mail-
boxes to help affected corporations and federal agencies recover.  

Avaya helps enterprises
improve productivity, manage 
security, lower expenses, 
and gain stability

ENTERPRISE TREND 3

Performance
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n 2001 the downturn of the worldwide economy brought the
concept of “return on investment” back into vogue.

Enterprises want to make their operations run better in the
face of reduced budgets and economic unpredictability.

We’ve proven our value as a supplier of choice for opera-
tional performance to hundreds of thousands of enterprises,
with rock-steady equipment, world-renowned engineering, and
committed services professionals. Enterprises look to Avaya
for reliability, predictability, return on investment, security,
and recoverability. 

Some enterprises entrust their entire ongoing communica-
tions operations to us; our Managed Services group directly
manages more than 1,500 voice platforms and 5 million
voice mailboxes around the world. Before they invest in equip-
ment, Avaya customers often ask our Professional Services
people to assess their needs and propose solutions.

Few companies have created products that deliver the
return on investment of Avaya equipment, exemplified by 15-
year-old workhorse telephone switches and associated gear
going strong in many customer locations. We build this kind
of durability into today’s servers and switches, which can
handle IP, cellular voice and high-speed data traffic in addi-
tion to traditional voice calls, giving customers flexibility and
investment protection as they adopt or evolve to IP infrastruc-
ture for voice and data. 

We address operational performance with innovative appli-
cations also. Companies such as MasterCard International
Incorporated and Charter Communications, Inc., which have
large contact centers to answer queries from their millions 
of customers, use Avaya™ Business Advocate to automati-
cally anticipate, control and optimize the distribution of the

SPOTLIGHT ON SECURITY
Enterprises began asking tough questions about security in
the fall of 2001. We had good answers. 

Avaya DEFINITY® Enterprise Communication Servers, which
can be programmed and controlled either locally or remotely,
help companies quickly respond to crises. Our servers can
track hackers, trace malicious calls, notify employees of
emergencies, lock or unlock doors, and activate emergency
sirens, strobe lights, and alarm systems.

Our secure VPN products allow businesses to share even
the most critical information securely over public Internet
Protocol networks, and are certified by government and 
independent laboratories. We extended security applications
for VPNs into the wireless arena last summer.

Avaya VPN Firewall products and its Security Management
Server detect intruders on extended corporate networks, 
providing protection from hackers.  

Green means go: New Avaya Labs software generated this graphic
model of an enterprise network, revealing its configuration of
switches and routers. The color codes indicate usage of each 
device and predict quality of voice calls over IP. Avaya Professional
Services personnel use the software – which can be run from 
any point on a customer’s network – to assess the customer’s
readiness for IP telephony. 

At its Data Services Center in
Tampa Bay, Fla., Avaya monitors
and maintains 10,000 enterprise
servers and switches for custom-
ers across the United States.

centers’ resources. Business Advocate’s software technique
minimizes caller wait times, and helps make employees
more productive, generate customer loyalty, and win sales at
a lower cost to the enterprise.

Workers on the go get more productivity with Unified
Communication applications. One analyst firm has estimated
that Avaya Unified Messenger saves mobile workers 30 min-
utes a day. That’s hours per week of time freed for contacting
customers and co-workers. 

Enterprises gain efficiency through our cabling, connec-
tors, racks and associated gear, which have set industry
standards for throughput and low error rates. This perfor-
mance will become even more important as ultra-high-speed
10 gigabit Ethernet devices become more commonplace 
and reach to the desktop.

Of course, emerging technologies also present new 
security challenges for enterprises, and we’re addressing
them, as always – and often before they appear. For
instance, customers operating their local networks remotely
can take advantage of an Avaya Labs-developed service 
that employs highly secure VPN tunnels, Avaya firewall tech-
nology, and the Internet, rather than less-secure public tele-
phone lines. 

To improve our own operational performance, we have
strategic teaming agreements with other global solution
providers. Alliances generally have higher profitability and
faster speed to market than their participants’ individual
businesses. And we derive about 40 percent of our worldwide
sales – and nearly all of our sales in Asia and the Pacific
region – through systems integrators, value-added resellers,
and Avaya BusinessPartners.
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The following table sets forth selected financial information derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements as of and for the fis-
cal years ended September 30, 1997, 1998, 1999, 2000 and 2001.
The selected financial information for the years prior to the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001 may not be indicative of our future perfor-
mance as an independent company. The selected financial information
for all periods should be read in conjunction with “Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations,” and the consolidated financial statements and the notes
thereto included elsewhere in this annual report.

In reviewing the selected financial information, please note the
following:
• The purchased in-process research and development is attributable
to the acquisitions of Quintus Corporation and VPNet Technologies, Inc.

in 2001, Lannet Ltd., SDX Business Systems PLC, and Prominet
Corporation in 1998, and Octel Communications Corporation and
Agile Networks, Inc. in 1997.
• We merged with Mosaix, Inc. in July 1999.
• Effective October 1, 1998, we changed our method for calculating
the market-related value of plan assets used in determining the
expected return-on-asset component of annual net pension and
postretirement benefit costs.
• Total debt represents the amount of financing we assumed as a
stand-alone company following the separation from Lucent as of
September 30, 2000 and debt attributable to our foreign entities.
• In October 2000, we sold four million shares of our Series B con-
vertible participating preferred stock and warrants to purchase our
common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $400 million. 

SELECTED F INANC IAL  DATA

F INANC IAL  REV IEW

Year Ended September 30,
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

STATEMENT OF OPERAT IONS INFORMATION:

Revenue $6,793 $7,732 $8,268 $7,754 $6,413
Business restructuring and related charges (reversals) 837 684 (33) – –
Purchased in-process research and development 32 – – 306 472
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change (352) (375) 186 43 (148)
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – 96 – –
Net income (loss) (352) (375) 282 43 (148)

EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE –  BASIC:

Income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (1.33) $ (1.39) $ 0.72 $ 0.17 $ (0.60)
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – 0.37 – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (1.33) $ (1.39) $ 1.09 $ 0.17 $ (0.60)
����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� 

EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE –  D ILUTED:

Income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (1.33) $ (1.39) $ 0.68 $ 0.17 $ (0.60)
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – 0.35 – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (1.33) $ (1.39) $ 1.03 $ 0.17 $ (0.60)
����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� 

As of September 30,
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION:

Total assets $4,648 $5,037 $4,239 $4,177 $3,340
Total debt 645 793 10 14 25
Series B convertible participating preferred stock 395 – – – –

TA B L E  O F  C O N T E N T S

Selected Financial Data 12 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 13 Report of Independent
Accountants 27 Consolidated Statements of Operations 28 Consolidated Balance Sheets 29 Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’
Equity and of Comprehensive Income (Loss) 30 Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 31 Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 32



enterprise voice communications systems and software, communications
applications, professional services for customer relationship man-
agement, converged voice and data networks and unified communica-
tion, multi-servicing networking products and product installation
services. The Services segment represents our maintenance, value-
added and data services. The Connectivity Solutions segment repre-
sents our structured cabling systems and our electronic cabinets. The
costs of shared services and other corporate center operations man-
aged on a common basis represent business activities that do not
qualify for separate operating segment reporting and are aggregated
in the corporate and other category. In the first quarter of fiscal 2001,
we realigned the method of allocating costs of shared services and
other corporate center operations managed outside of the reportable
operating segments. Financial data for the periods prior to the realign-
ment have been restated to conform to the current presentation.
Effective January 1, 2002, we intend to implement a broad internal
reorganization of our company and expect to effect a corresponding
reorganization of our reportable segments in the second quarter of
fiscal 2002.

We have been experiencing declines in revenue from our tradi-
tional business, enterprise voice communications products. We
expect, based on various industry reports, a low growth rate in the
market segments for these traditional products. We are implementing
a strategy to capitalize on the higher growth opportunities in our mar-
ket, including advanced communications solutions such as converged
voice and data networks, customer relationship management solu-
tions, unified communication applications and multi-service network-
ing products. This strategy requires us to make a significant change in
the direction and strategy of our company to focus on the develop-
ment and sales of these advanced products. The success of this strat-
egy, however, is subject to many risks, including the risks that: 
• we do not develop new products or enhancements to our current prod-
ucts on a timely basis to meet the changing needs of our customers; 
• customers do not accept our products or new technology, or indus-
try standards develop that make our products obsolete; or 
• our competitors introduce new products before we do and achieve a
competitive advantage by being among the first to market. 

Our traditional enterprise voice communications products and the
advanced communications solutions described above are a part of 
our Communications Solutions segment. If we are unsuccessful in
implementing our strategy, the contribution to our results from
Communications Solutions may decline, reducing our overall profitabil-
ity, thereby requiring a greater need for external capital resources. 

In addition, although the September 11, 2001 terrorist attacks
against the U.S. and the national and global response to these terror-
ist attacks have not had a direct material effect on our business, the
attacks and related response may continue to create widespread
business uncertainty and adversely affect the global economy, which
may continue to result in delays in purchasing decisions and/or may
adversely affect our business generally.

The following section should be read in conjunction with the consoli-
dated financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere
in this annual repor t. The matters discussed in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations contain certain forward-looking statements within the
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.
Statements made that are not historical facts are forward-looking and
are based on estimates, forecasts and assumptions involving risks
and uncertainties that could cause actual results or outcomes to dif-
fer materially from those expressed in the forward-looking statements.

The risks and uncertainties referred to above include, but are not
limited to, price and product competition; rapid technological develop-
ment; dependence on new product development; the successful intro-
duction of new products; the mix of our products and services;
customer demand for our products and services; the ability to suc-
cessfully integrate acquired companies; control of costs and
expenses; the ability to form and implement alliances; the ability to
implement in a timely manner our restructuring plans; the economic,
political and other risks associated with international sales and oper-
ations; United States and foreign government regulation; general
industry and market conditions; and growth rates and general domes-
tic and international economic conditions including interest rate and
currency exchange rate fluctuations. See also “Forward-Looking
Statements” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

O V E R V I E W

We are a leading provider of communications systems and software for
enterprises, including businesses, government agencies and other
organizations. We offer voice, converged voice and data, customer
relationship management, messaging, multi-service networking and
structured cabling products and services. Multi-service networking
products are those products that support network infrastructures
which carry voice, video and data traffic over any of the protocols, or
set of procedures, supported by the Internet on local area and wide
area data networks. A structured cabling system is a flexible cabling
system designed to connect phones, workstations, personal comput-
ers, local area networks and other communications devices through a
building or across one or more campuses. We are a worldwide leader
in sales of messaging and structured cabling systems and a U.S.
leader in sales of enterprise voice communications and call center sys-
tems. We are not a leader in multi-service networking products, and
our product portfolio in this area is less complete than the portfolios of
some of our competitors. In addition, we are not a leader in sales 
of certain converged voice and data products, including server-based
Internet Protocol telephony systems. We are implementing a strategy
focused on these and other advanced communications solutions.

We report our operations in three segments: Communications
Solutions, Services and Connectivity Solutions. The Communications
Solutions segment represents our core business, which consists of our

MANAGEMENT ’S  D ISCUSS ION  AND  ANALYS IS  
OF  F INANC IAL  COND IT ION  AND  RESULTS  OF  OPERAT IONS
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The following table sets forth the allocation of our revenue among
our operating segments, expressed as a percentage of total external
revenue, excluding corporate and other revenue:

Year Ended September 30,
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

OPERATING SEGMENTS:

Communications Solutions 49.7% 56.3% 61.6%
Services 30.8 25.3 23.0
Connectivity Solutions 19.5 18.4 15.4

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
������������ ������������ ������������

S E PA R AT I O N  F R O M  L U C E N T  T E C H N O L O G I E S  I N C .

On September 30, 2000, under the terms of a Contribution and
Distribution Agreement between Lucent and us, Lucent contributed its
enterprise networking business to us and distributed all of the out-
standing shares of our capital stock to its stockholders. We refer to
these transactions as the contribution and the distribution, respec-
tively. We had no material assets or activities until the contribution,
which occurred immediately prior to the distribution. Lucent con-
ducted such businesses through various divisions and subsidiaries.
Following the distribution, we became an independent public com-
pany, and Lucent no longer has a continuing stock ownership interest
in us. Prior to the distribution, we entered into several agreements
with Lucent in connection with, among other things, intellectual prop-
erty, interim services and a number of ongoing commercial relation-
ships, including product supply arrangements. The interim services
agreement set forth charges generally intended to allow the providing
company to fully recover the allocated direct costs of providing the
services, plus all out-of-pocket costs and expenses, but without any
profit. With limited exceptions, these interim services expired on
March 31, 2001. The pricing terms for goods and services covered by
the commercial agreements reflect current market prices at the time
of the transaction. 

Our consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the
two fiscal years ended September 30, 2000 have been derived from
the financial statements and accounting records of Lucent using the
historical results of operations and historical basis of the assets and
liabilities of the enterprise networking businesses transferred to us
immediately prior to the distribution. We believe these consolidated
financial statements are a reasonable representation of the financial
position, results of operations, cash flows and changes in stock-
holders’ equity of such businesses as if Avaya were a separate entity.

Our consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the
two years ended September 30, 2000 include allocations of certain
Lucent corporate headquarters’ assets, liabilities, and expenses
relating to these businesses that were transferred to us from Lucent.
General corporate overhead has been allocated either based on the
ratio of our costs and expenses to Lucent’s costs and expenses, or
based on our revenue as a percentage of Lucent’s total revenue.

General corporate overhead primarily includes cash management,
legal, accounting, tax, insurance, public relations, advertising and
data services and amounted to $398 million and $449 million in fis-
cal 2000 and 1999, respectively. In addition, the consolidated finan-
cial statements for fiscal 2000 and 1999 include an allocation from
Lucent to fund a portion of the costs of basic research conducted by
Lucent’s Bell Laboratories. This allocation was based on our revenue
as a percentage of Lucent’s total revenue and amounted to $75 mil-
lion and $78 million in fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively. We believe
the costs of corporate services and research charged to us are a rea-
sonable representation of the costs that would have been incurred if
we had performed these functions as a stand-alone entity. We cur-
rently perform these corporate functions and basic research require-
ments using our own resources or purchased services.

Prior to the distribution, cash deposits from our businesses were
transferred to Lucent on a regular basis. As a result, none of Lucent’s
cash, cash equivalents or debt at the corporate level had been allo-
cated to us. Although our Consolidated Statements of Operations
include interest expense for the fiscal years ended September 30,
2000 and 1999, the Consolidated Balance Sheets for periods prior to
the distribution do not include an allocation of Lucent debt at the cor-
porate level because Lucent used a centralized approach to cash
management and the financing of its operations. We have assumed
for purposes of calculating interest expense that we would have had
average debt balances of $962 million and $1,320 million and aver-
age interest rates of 7.9% and 6.8% per annum for fiscal 2000 and
1999, respectively. We believe the interest rates and average debt
balances used in the calculation of interest expense reasonably
reflect the cost of financing our assets and operations during the peri-
ods prior to the distribution. 

Income taxes were calculated in fiscal 2000 and 1999 as if we
filed separate tax returns. However, Lucent was managing its tax posi-
tion for the benefit of its entire portfolio of businesses, and its tax
strategies were not necessarily reflective of the tax strategies that we
would have followed or will follow as a stand-alone company. Com-
mencing with fiscal 2001, we will begin filing our own consolidated
income tax returns.

We have resolved all of the contribution and distribution issues with
Lucent related to the settlement of certain employee obligations and
the transfer of certain assets. Accordingly, we recorded a $42 million
net reduction to additional paid-in capital in fiscal 2001. Following the
distribution, we had identified approximately $15 million recorded in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets that was primarily related to certain
accounts receivable balances due from Lucent and certain fixed
assets, which we have agreed will remain with Lucent. Also in con-
nection with the distribution, we had recorded estimates in our
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2000 in prepaid bene-
fit costs and benefit obligations of various existing Lucent benefit plans
related to employees for whom we assumed responsibility. Following an
actuarial review, we received a valuation, agreed upon by us and



Lucent, that provides for a reduction of approximately $44 million in pre-
paid benefit costs and $17 million in pension and postretirement bene-
fit obligations. We recorded the net effect of these adjustments as a
reduction to additional paid-in capital in fiscal 2001 because the
transactions relate to the original capital contribution from Lucent. 

In addition, Avaya and Lucent have amended the Contribution and
Distribution Agreement to remove the provisions restricting us from
entering into strategic alliances with Nortel Networks Corporation and
Cisco Systems, Inc.

B U S I N E S S  R E S T R U C T U R I N G  A N D  R E L AT E D  C H A R G E S

In fiscal 2001, we outsourced certain manufacturing facilities and
accelerated our restructuring plan that was originally adopted in
September 2000 to improve profitability and business performance as
a stand-alone company. As a result, we recorded a pretax charge of
$872 million in fiscal 2001 for business restructuring and related
charges, which is expected to result in a $295 million usage of cash.
This charge was partially offset by a $35 million reversal to income prima-
rily attributable to fewer employee separations than originally anticipated
and more favorable than expected real estate lease termination costs.

The components of the fiscal 2001 charge include $650 million of
employee separation costs, $24 million of lease termination costs,
and $198 million of other related charges. The charge for employee
separation costs is composed of $577 million primarily related to
enhanced pension and postretirement benefits, which represent 
the cost of curtailment in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 88, “Employers’ Accounting for
Settlements and Curtailments of Defined Benefit Pension Plans and
for Termination Benefits,” and $73 million for severance, special ben-
efit payments and other employee separation costs. The $198 million
of other related charges is composed of $178 million for incremental
period expenses primarily to facilitate the separation from Lucent,
including computer system transition costs, and $20 million for an
asset impairment charge related to land, buildings and equipment at
the Shreveport manufacturing facility that we expect to dispose of dur-
ing fiscal 2002. Employee separation costs of $55 million estab-
lished in fiscal 2000 for union-represented employees at Shreveport
will be paid as enhanced severance benefits from existing pension and
benefit assets and, accordingly, such amount was reclassified in fiscal
2001 out of the business restructuring reserve and recorded as a
reduction to prepaid benefit costs.

The employee separation costs in fiscal 2001 were incurred in
connection with the elimination of 6,810 employee positions of which
5,600 were through a combination of involuntary and voluntary sepa-
rations, including an early retirement program targeted at U.S. man-
agement employees, and a workforce reduction of 1,210 employees
due to the outsourcing of certain of our manufacturing operations to
Celestica Inc. Employee separation payments that are included in the
business restructuring reserve will be made either through a lump
sum or a series of payments extending over a period of up to two

years from the date of departure at each employee’s option. This
workforce reduction was substantially complete as of September 30,
2001. Real estate lease termination costs are being incurred prima-
rily in the U.S., Europe and Asia, and have been reduced for sublease
income that management believes is probable. Payments on lease
obligations, which consist of real estate and equipment leases, will
extend through 2003. In fiscal 2001, accrued costs for lease obliga-
tions represent approximately 666,000 square feet of excess sales
and services support offices, materials, stocking and logistics ware-
houses, and Connectivity Solutions facilities. As of September 30,
2001, we had not yet vacated any of this space.

In fiscal 2000, we recorded a pretax business restructuring charge
of $684 million in connection with our separation from Lucent. The
components of the charge include $365 million of employee separa-
tion costs, $127 million of lease termination costs, $28 million of
other exit costs, and $164 million of other related charges. 

The charge for employee separation costs in fiscal 2000 includes
severance, medical and other benefits attributable to the worldwide
reduction of 4,900 union-represented and management positions.
This charge is the result of redesigning the services organization by
reducing the number of field technicians to a level needed for non-
peak workloads, consolidating and closing certain U.S. and European
manufacturing facilities and realigning the sales effort to focus the
direct sales force on strategic accounts and address smaller
accounts through indirect sales channels. This workforce reduction
was substantially complete as of September 30, 2001. The charge for
lease termination obligations included approximately two million
square feet of excess manufacturing, distribution and administrative
space, of which we have vacated 646,000 square feet as of
September 30, 2001. Other exit costs consist of decommissioning
legacy computer systems in connection with our separation from
Lucent and terminating other contractual obligations.

The $164 million of other related charges in fiscal 2000 is com-
posed of $89 million for incremental period expenses related to the
separation from Lucent, including computer system transition costs,
and a $75 million asset impairment charge that was primarily related
to an outsourcing contract with a major customer. With respect to the
asset impairment, we terminated our obligation under a leasing
arrangement and purchased the underlying equipment, which had
been used to support a contract with a customer to provide out-
sourcing and related services. Based on the terms of this contract,
the estimated undiscounted cash flows from the equipment’s use
and eventual disposition was determined to be less than the equip-
ment’s carrying value, and resulted in an impairment charge of
$50 million to write such equipment down to its fair value.

In fiscal 1999, we reversed $33 million of employee separation
costs, originally established in December 1995, due to higher than
expected voluntary employee attrition. As of September 30, 1999, all
prior restructuring related plans were complete and no such
reserves remained.
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In addition, in fiscal 2001 and 2000, we recorded $48 million and
$73 million, respectively, in selling, general and administrative
expenses for start-up activities related to establishing independent
operations, including fees for investment banking and other profes-
sional advisors, and marketing costs associated with establishing the
Avaya brand. 

During fiscal 2002, we expect to incur additional period costs of
approximately $22 million and $24 million related to the outsourcing
of certain of our manufacturing facilities and our accelerated restruc-
turing program, respectively. We expect to fund these expenses
through a combination of debt and internally generated funds. 

We believe that outsourcing our manufacturing will allow us to
improve our cash flow over the next few years through a reduction of
inventory and reduced capital expenditures. 

A C Q U I S I T I O N S

As part of our continued efforts to broaden our portfolio of product
offerings, we completed the following key acquisitions during fis-
cal 2001 and 1999. There were no material acquisitions in fiscal 2000.

APRIL  2001 – Acquisition of substantially all of the assets, including
$10 million of cash acquired, and the assumption of $20 million of
certain liabilities of Quintus Corporation, a provider of comprehensive
electronic customer relationship management solutions. We paid
$29 million in cash for these assets. This transaction was accounted
for as a purchase combination.

FEBRUARY 2001 – Acquisition of VPNet Technologies, Inc. (“VPNet”), 
a privately held distributor of vir tual private network solutions 
and devices. The total purchase price of $117 million was paid in cash
and stock options. This transaction was accounted for as a purchase
combination.

JULY 1999 – Merger with Mosaix, Inc., a provider of software that man-
ages an enterprise’s various office functions. Lucent issued 2.6 mil-
lion shares of Lucent common stock, with a value of $145 million, for
all of the outstanding stock of Mosaix. The transaction was accounted
for as a pooling of interests.

R E V E N U E

We derive revenue primarily from the sales of communication systems
and software. We sell our products both directly through our world-
wide sales force and indirectly through our global network of approxi-
mately 4,000 distributors, dealers, value-added resellers, system
integrators and contractors. The purchase price of our systems and
software typically includes installation and a one-year warranty. We
also derive revenue from:
• maintenance services, including services provided under mainte-
nance contracts and on a time and material basis; 
• professional services for customer relationship management, con-
verged voice and data networks, and unified communications; and 
• value-added services for outsourcing messaging and other parts of
communication systems.

The following table summarizes the status of our business restructuring and related charges as well as the related reserve during fis-
cal 2000 and 2001:

Business Restructuring Charges Other Related Charges
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Total Total Business
Employee Lease Business Restructuring

Separation Termination Other Restructuring Asset Incremental and Related
Costs Obligations Exit Costs Charges Impairments Period Costs Charges

�������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

F ISCAL 2000:

Charges $ 365 $127 $ 28 $ 520 $ 75 $ 89 $ 684
Cash payments (20) – (1) (21) – (89) (110)
Asset impairments – – – – (75) – (75)

�������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������

Balance as of September 30, 2000 $ 345 $127 $ 27 $ 499 $ – $ – $ 499
�������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������

F ISCAL 2001:

Charges $ 650 $ 24 $ – $ 674 $ 20 $ 178 $ 872
Reversals (17) (7) (11) (35) – – (35)
Decrease in prepaid benefit costs/

increase in benefit obligations, net (577) – – (577) – – (577)
Cash payments (250) (66) (11) (327) – (178) (505)
Asset impairments – – – – (20) – (20)
Reclassification (55) – – (55) – – (55)

�������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������

Balance as of September 30, 2001 $ 96 $ 78 $ 5 $ 179 $ – $ – $ 179
����������������� ����������������� ����������������� ����������������� ����������������� ����������������� �����������������



Maintenance contracts typically have terms that range from one to
five years. Contracts for professional services typically have terms
that range from two to four weeks for standard solutions and from six
months to one year for customized solutions. Contracts for value-
added services typically have terms that range from one to seven
years. Revenue from sales of communications systems and software
is recognized when contractual obligations have been satisfied, title
and risk of loss has been transferred to the customer, and collection
of the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Revenue from the
direct sales of products that include installation services is recog-
nized at the time the products are installed, after satisfaction of all
the terms and conditions of the underlying customer contract. Our
indirect sales to distribution partners generally are recognized at the
time of shipment if all contractual obligations have been satisfied. We
provide for estimated sales returns and other allowances and defer-
rals as a reduction of revenue at the time of revenue recognition, as
required. Revenue from services performed under our value-added
service arrangements, professional services and services performed
under maintenance contracts are recognized over the term of the
underlying customer contract or at the end of the contract, when obli-
gations have been satisfied. For services performed on a time and
materials basis, revenue is recognized upon performance.

C O S T S  A N D  O P E R AT I N G  E X P E N S E S

Our costs of products consist primarily of materials and components,
labor and manufacturing overhead. Our costs of services consist pri-
marily of labor, parts and service overhead. Our selling, general and
administrative expenses and research and development expenses
consist primarily of salaries, commissions, benefits and other mis-
cellaneous items. Please see “Purchased In-Process Research and
Development” for a discussion of this line item.

Total operating expenses in the fiscal years ended September 30,
2001 and 1999 were reduced due to the reversal of $35 million 
and $33 million of business restructuring liabilities recorded in
September 2000 and December 1995, respectively, primarily related to
fewer employee separations than originally anticipated for those years.

O P E R AT I N G  T R E N D S

We have been increasing, and intend to continue to increase, the per-
centage of our sales made through our indirect sales channels. To fur-
ther this strategy, in March 2000, we sold our primary distribution
function for our voice communications systems for small- and mid-
sized enterprises to Expanets, Inc. If sales volumes remain constant
as the percentage of our sales through indirect sales channels
increases, then our revenue would decline.

R E S U LT S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S

The following table sets for th line items from our Consolidated
Statements of Operations as a percentage of revenue for the 
years indicated: 

Year Ended September 30,
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Revenue 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Costs 57.4 58.0 57.6

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Gross margin 42.6 42.0 42.4
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Operating expenses:
Selling, general and 

administrative 30.3 32.8 31.8
Business restructuring and 

related charges (reversals) 12.3 8.8 (0.4)
Research and development 7.9 6.1 6.5
Purchased in-process research 

and development 0.5 – –
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Total operating expenses 51.0 47.7 37.9
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Operating income (loss) (8.4) (5.7) 4.5
Other income, net 0.5 0.9 0.3
Interest expense (0.5) (1.0) (1.1)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (3.2) (1.0) 1.5
Cumulative effect of 

accounting change – – 1.2
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Net income (loss) (5.2)% (4.8)% 3.4%
����������� ����������� �����������

Included in operating income for the fiscal year ended September 30,
1999, is $97 million received on the sale of equipment, which was
previously leased to customers, net of the equipment's book value of
approximately $2 million. This equipment consisted predominantly of
discontinued product lines. This transaction represented 1.2% of fis-
cal 1999 revenue.

F I S C A L  Y E A R  E N D E D  S E P T E M B E R  3 0 ,  2 0 0 1  C O M PA R E D  W I T H  F I S C A L Y E A R

E N D E D  S E P T E M B E R  3 0 ,  2 0 0 0

The following table shows the change in external revenue, both in dol-
lars and in percentage terms:

Year Ended September 30, Change
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 $ %
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

OPERAT ING SEGMENTS:

Communications 
Solutions $3,377 $4,354 $(977) (22.4)%

Services 2,092 1,958 134 6.8
Connectivity 

Solutions 1,322 1,418 (96) (6.8)
Corporate and other 2 2 – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total $6,793 $7,732 $(939) (12.1)%
����������� ����������� ����������� �����������
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Revenue. Revenue decreased 12.1% or $939 million, from $7,732 mil-
lion in fiscal 2000 to $6,793 million in fiscal 2001, due to a decrease
in revenue from the Communications Solutions and Connectivity
Solutions segments partially offset by an increase in revenue from
the Services segment. The overall reduction in revenue was mainly
attributable to the weakened economic conditions in the technology
sector that resulted in a sagging demand for telephony equipment
and related products. The decrease in the Communications Solutions
segment was largely due to a decline in customer purchases of
$639 million in enterprise voice communications systems, $163 mil-
lion in messaging systems and $105 million in customer relationship
management products predominantly in the U.S., partially offset by
growth worldwide of $155 million in the multi-service networking busi-
ness. The revenue decline in the Communications Solutions segment
also resulted from a shift in the sales effort to focus the direct sales
force on strategic accounts and address smaller accounts through
indirect sales channels beginning in the third quarter of fiscal 2000,
changes in product mix, a decrease of $145 million in installation rev-
enue as a result of the reduction in product sales, and the effects of
customers having purchased systems in fiscal 2000 in anticipation of
Year 2000 concerns. In addition to the negative effects of the eco-
nomic slowdown in the U.S., the decrease in revenues within the
Connectivity Solutions segment was also related to a reduction in pur-
chases of $164 million in our ExchangeMAX cabling systems for serv-
ice providers, due to a reduction in capital spending by customers of
ExchangeMAX, and certain Federal Communications Commission reg-
ulatory changes that permitted common exchange carriers access to
local exchange carrier networks. The decrease in revenues from
ExchangeMAX was partially offset by a modest increase of $47 mil-
lion in revenues from sales primarily in the U.S. of our SYSTIMAX®

structured cabling systems for enterprises, including the introduction of
new apparatus products and increased sales of $21 million of electronic
cabinets predominantly in the U.S. The increase in the Services seg-
ment was mainly the result of the positive effects in the U.S. of introduc-
ing data services of $142 million as well as the strong growth outside
of the U.S. in value-added services of $46 million, partially offset by a
decrease of $62 million in maintenance revenues primarily in the U.S. 

Revenue within the U.S. decreased 15.6% or $952 million, from
$6,110 million in fiscal 2000 to $5,158 million in fiscal 2001.
However, revenue outside the U.S. increased slightly by 0.8% or
$13 million, from $1,622 million for fiscal 2000, to $1,635 million for
fiscal 2001. Revenue outside the U.S. represented 24.1% of revenue
in fiscal 2001 compared with 21.0% in fiscal 2000. 

We continued to expand our business outside of the U.S. with mar-
ginal growth across most regions, primarily led by the Asia Pacific
region. Our largest increases in sales outside of the U.S. were made
in Services, Communications Solutions’ multi-service networking
products and professional services, and Connectivity Solutions’
ExchangeMAX product. 

Costs and gross margin. Total costs decreased 13.1% or $586 mil-
lion, from $4,483 million in fiscal 2000 to $3,897 million in fis-
cal 2001. The gross margin percentage increased slightly from 42.0% in
fiscal 2000 to 42.6% in fiscal 2001. The increase in gross margin was
primarily attributed to favorable product mix and lower discounts in
Connectivity Solutions combined with the ongoing savings from the
business restructuring, including the improvement to the cost struc-
ture within the Services segment. This increase was largely offset by
the decrease in gross margin within Communications Solutions due
to lower sales volumes, a less favorable product mix and the shift to
an indirect sales channel.

Selling, general and administrative. SG&A expenses decreased 19.0%
or $482 million, from $2,540 million in fiscal 2000 to $2,058 million in
fiscal 2001. The decrease is primarily due to savings associated with
our business restructuring plan, including lower staffing levels, termi-
nated real estate lease obligations, cost improvements associated
with the implementation of our new SAP information technology sys-
tem, process improvements in sales and sales operations, and
streamlining delivery of several corporate functions, including the out-
sourcing of payroll and procurement services. The reduction in SG&A
was also attributable to lower start-up activities related to establish-
ing independent operations, which are primarily composed of adver-
tising costs associated with establishing our brand. The reduction in
SG&A expenses was partially offset by an increase in ongoing mar-
keting expense.

Business restructuring and related charges. Business restructuring
and related charges of $837 million in fiscal 2001 represent costs
associated with our restructuring plan to improve profitability and
business performance as a stand-alone company. The components of
the fiscal 2001 charge include $540 million for our accelerated
restructuring plan, which is essentially composed of enhanced pen-
sion and healthcare benefits that were offered through an early retire-
ment program, severance and terminated lease obligations, $134 million
primarily for employee separation costs associated with the out-
sourcing of certain manufacturing operations to Celestica, $178 mil-
lion representing incremental period costs largely associated with our
separation from Lucent including computer system transition costs
such as data conversion activities, asset transfers and training, and a
$20 million asset impairment charge. These charges were partially
offset by a $35 million reversal of business restructuring liabilities
originally recorded in September 2000.

Business restructuring and related charges of $684 million for fis-
cal 2000 include $520 million principally for employee separations
and lease obligations, $75 million of asset impairment charges, and
$89 million of incremental period costs associated with our separa-
tion from Lucent.



Research and development. R&D expenses increased 14.5% 
or $68 million, from $468 million in fiscal 2000 to $536 million in 
fiscal 2001. Our investment in R&D represented 7.9% of revenue in fis-
cal 2001 as compared with 6.1% in fiscal 2000. This increased invest-
ment supports our plan to shift spending to high growth areas of our
business and reduce spending on more mature product lines. 

We intend to invest in R&D an amount equal to approximately 8%
to 10% of our total revenue by the end of fiscal 2003. These invest-
ments represent a significant increase over our investments in R&D
for the fiscal years prior to the distribution, which were approximately
6% of total revenue. As a part of Lucent, we were allocated a portion
of Lucent’s basic research, which did not necessarily directly benefit
our business. Our current and future investments in R&D will have a
greater focus on our products. 

Purchased in-process research and development. In fiscal 2001, we
acquired VPNet and substantially all of the assets of Quintus
Corporation. The purchase prices for these acquisitions included cer-
tain technologies that had not reached technological feasibility and
had no future alternative use and, accordingly, were charged to
expense immediately upon consummation of the respective acquisi-
tions. There was no charge in fiscal 2000 for purchased in-process
research and development. 

Other income, net. Other income, net decreased 52.1% or $37 mil-
lion, from $71 million in fiscal 2000 to $34 million in fiscal 2001. This
decrease was primarily due to a gain recorded in March 2000 on the
sale of our U.S. sales division serving small- and mid-sized enter-
prises, which was partially offset by interest income earned on higher
cash balances during fiscal 2001. 

Interest expense. Interest expense decreased 51.3% or $39 million,
from $76 million in fiscal 2000 to $37 million in fiscal 2001. The
decrease is primarily attributable to higher weighted average interest
rates and assumed debt levels utilized in fiscal 2000 to reflect the
level of financing that was thought to be needed to fund our opera-
tions as a stand-alone entity.

Provision for income taxes. The effective tax rates in fiscal 2001 and
2000 reflect a benefit of 38.3% and 16.3%, respectively. The differ-
ence between the rates is due primarily to a favorable change in the
tax differential on foreign earnings and lower non-deductible restruc-
turing costs offset by an increase in purchased in-process research
and development expense. Excluding purchased in-process research and
development and other acquisition related costs, the adjusted effec-
tive tax rates in fiscal 2001 and 2000 would be benefits of 40.7% and
16.3%, respectively.

F I S C A L  Y E A R  E N D E D  S E P T E M B E R  3 0 ,  2 0 0 0  C O M PA R E D  W I T H  F I S C A L  Y E A R

E N D E D  S E P T E M B E R  3 0 ,  1 9 9 9

The following table shows the change in external revenue, both in dol-
lars and in percentage terms:

Year Ended September 30, Change
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2000 1999 $ %
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

OPERAT ING SEGMENTS:

Communications 
Solutions $4,354 $5,088 $(734) (14.4)%

Services 1,958 1,900 58 3.1
Connectivity 

Solutions 1,418 1,274 144 11.3
Corporate and other 2 6 (4) (66.7)

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total $7,732 $8,268 $(536) (6.5)%
����������� ����������� ����������� �����������

Revenue. Revenue decreased 6.5% or $536 million, from $8,268 mil-
lion in fiscal 1999 to $7,732 million in fiscal 2000 due to a decrease
in the Communications Solutions segment, par tially of fset by
increases in the Connectivity Solutions and Services segments. The
decrease in the Communications Solutions segment was partially
attributable to a sales reduction of $188 million of our Merlin Magix®

and Partner,® and $127 million of our DEFINITY® product lines due
largely to the shift in the sales effort to focus the direct sales force on
strategic accounts and address smaller accounts through indirect
sales channels resulting from our sale of this distribution function in
March 2000. The sales reduction of our enterprise voice communica-
tions systems was also attributed to attrition within our skilled sales
force, which particularly affected our most advanced DEFINITY prod-
uct offering. In addition, sales of our messaging products decreased
by $204 million as customers purchased a higher than usual number
of systems in 1999 to upgrade their systems in anticipation of
Year 2000 concerns. In addition, the Communications Solutions seg-
ment experienced a $218 million decrease in installation revenue as
a result of the reduction in product sales. These decreases were par-
tially offset by increases in professional services as well as in sales
of our eBusiness Communications Solutions. The Connectivity Solutions
segment increase was driven by growth in ExchangeMAX structured
cabling systems and electronic cabinet sales of $215 million, largely off-
set by a decrease in SYSTIMAX structured cabling systems. The
increase in the Services segment was the result of strong growth in
maintenance services internationally and in existing value-added serv-
ices.

Revenue within the U.S. decreased 8.6% or $573 million, from
$6,683 million in fiscal 1999 to $6,110 million in fiscal 2000.
Revenue outside the U.S. increased 2.3% or $37 million, from
$1,585 million in fiscal 1999 to $1,622 million in fiscal 2000. Revenue
outside the U.S. in fiscal 2000 represented 21.0% of revenue com-
pared with 19.2% in fiscal 1999. We continued to expand our business
outside of the U.S., with growth led by the Asia Pacific region.

19.



Avaya 200120.

Costs and gross margin. Total costs decreased 5.8% or $277 million,
from $4,760 million in fiscal 1999 to $4,483 million in fiscal 2000 pri-
marily due to the decrease in product sales. Gross margin percentage
remained essentially flat with a decrease of 0.4%, from 42.4% in fis-
cal 1999 to 42.0% in fiscal 2000. The slight reduction in gross margin
was largely due to aggressive pricing and promotional actions that
more than offset the decrease in costs.

Selling, general and administrative. SG&A expenses decreased 3.5%
or $92 million, from $2,632 million in fiscal 1999 to $2,540 million in
fiscal 2000. The decrease is primarily due to reduced bonus compen-
sation expenses resulting from lower than anticipated financial
performance and lower staffing levels resulting from the realignment
and integration of our sales force and our information systems group.
The headcount reductions for our information systems group were
associated with the ongoing implementation of a new computer soft-
ware platform. The majority of these reductions were associated with
the shutdown and elimination of support for obsolete and redundant
computer systems. The reduction in SG&A expenses was partially off-
set by $73 million in charges for start-up activities related to estab-
lishing independent operations including fees for investment banking
and other professional advisors, and marketing costs associated with
establishing our brand.

Business restructuring and related charges (reversals). Business
restructuring and related charges of $684 million in fiscal 2000 rep-
resent costs associated with our restructuring plan to improve prof-
itability and business performance as a stand-alone company. The
components of the charge include $520 million of business restruc-
turing costs principally for employee separations and lease obliga-
tions, $75 million of asset impairment charges, and $89 million of
incremental period costs associated with our separation from Lucent.

The business restructuring reversal of $33 million in fiscal 1999
represents the reduction of business restructuring liabilities recorded
in December 1995 and is primarily the result of fewer employee sepa-
rations than originally anticipated under that plan. 

Research and development. R&D expenses decreased 13.3% or
$72 million, from $540 million in fiscal 1999 to $468 million in fis-
cal 2000. Increases in funding for call center and converged voice
and data products, as well as spending associated with the acquisi-
tion of Mosaix, were more than offset by reduced spending on more
mature product lines such as Partner, Merlin Magix and Wireless. In
addition, spending decreased due to synergies realized in consolida-
tion of the data product line research and development operations of
Prominet and Lannet.

Other income, net. Other income, net increased 153.6% or $43 mil-
lion, from $28 million in fiscal 1999 to $71 million in fiscal 2000. This
increase was primarily due to a gain of $45 million recognized in
March 2000 on the sale of our U.S. sales division serving small- and
mid-sized enterprises, which was calculated based on the net cash
proceeds received related to this sale.

Provision for income taxes. The effective tax rate in fiscal 2000 was 
a benefit of 16.3% as compared with an expense of 39.4% in 
fiscal 1999. The tax benefit in fiscal 2000 is primarily due to our net
loss that resulted from the business restructuring and related
charges, offset by non-deductible charges associated with our reor-
ganization, and taxes on foreign earnings in connection with our sepa-
ration from Lucent.

L I Q U I D I T Y  A N D  C A P I T A L  R E S O U R C E S

Avaya’s cash and cash equivalents decreased to $250 million at
September 30, 2001, from $271 million at September 30, 2000. The
decrease resulted from $133 million and $365 million of net cash
used for operating and investing activities, respectively, partially off-
set by $483 million of net cash provided by financing activities. In fis-
cal 2000, Avaya’s cash and cash equivalents increased to
$271 million at September 30, 2000, from $194 million at September
30, 1999. The increase resulted from $485 million of net cash pro-
vided by operating activities, offset in part by $428 million of net cash
used in investing activities.

Our net cash used for operating activities was $133 million in fis-
cal 2001 compared with net cash provided by operating activities of
$485 million in fiscal 2000. Net cash used for operating activities in
fiscal 2001 was composed of a net loss of $352 million adjusted for
non-cash items of $779 million, and net cash used for changes in
operating assets and liabilities of $560 million. Net cash used for
operating activities is primarily attributed to cash payments made for
our business restructuring related activities resulting from our separa-
tion from Lucent and our establishment as an independent company.
In addition, we have decreased our accounts payable, payroll related
liabilities and advance billings and deposits. This usage of cash was
partially offset by receipts of cash on amounts due from our cus-
tomers. Days sales outstanding in accounts receivable for fis-
cal 2001, excluding the ef fect of the securitization transaction
discussed below, was 95 days versus 74 days for fiscal 2000. This
increase is primarily attributable to transition issues resulting from
the consolidation of our customer collection facilities coupled with the
temporary effects of the September 11, 2001 tragedy on our cus-
tomers and business partners. Days sales of inventory on-hand for
fiscal 2001 were 70 days versus 51 days for fiscal 2000. The
increase in days sales of inventory on-hand is primarily due to lower
than expected sales volumes.

In fiscal 2000, net cash provided by operating activities of $485 mil-
lion resulted primarily from a net loss of $375 million adjusted for non-
cash charges of $538 million, and cash generated by changes in
operating assets and liabilities of $322 million. Our net cash provided
by operating activities increased from $431 million in fiscal 1999 to
$485 million in fiscal 2000 primarily as a result of a reduction in work-
ing capital. The reduction in working capital resulted from a decrease in
inventory and an increase in accounts payable due to business restruc-
turing and start-up activities related to establishing our independent
operations. These changes were partially offset by a decrease in payroll
and benefit liabilities. In fiscal 2000 and 1999, days sales outstanding



in accounts receivable were 74 and 69, respectively, and days sales of
inventory on-hand were 51 and 61, respectively.

Our net cash used for investing activities was $365 million in fiscal
2001 compared with $428 million and $86 million in fiscal 2000 and
1999, respectively. Capital expenditures, which account for the
largest component of investing activities in each year, generally relate
to expenditures for equipment and facilities used in manufacturing
and research and development. Capital expenditures for fiscal 2001
and 2000 also include payments made by Avaya to establish itself as
a stand-alone entity, including the implementation of SAP, establish-
ing and upgrading our information technology systems, and other cor-
porate infrastructure expenditures. Additionally, in fiscal 2001, we
used $120 million of cash to acquire VPNet and substantially all the
assets of Quintus Corporation. The net cash used for investing activi-
ties in fiscal 2001 was partially offset by the receipt of proceeds from
the sale-leaseback of an aircraft, the sale of manufacturing equip-
ment to Celestica and the sale of other corporate infrastructure
assets. In fiscal 2000, cash used for investing activities was partially
offset by the receipt of proceeds from the sale of our U.S. sales divi-
sion serving small- and mid-sized enterprises. 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $483 million in fis-
cal 2001 compared with $42 million in fiscal 2000. Cash flows from
financing activities in fiscal 2001 were mainly due to (i) $400 million
in proceeds from the sale of our Series B convertible participating
preferred stock and warrants to purchase our common stock
described below, (ii) $200 million of proceeds from the securitization
of certain trade receivables, (iii) a $200 million drawdown on our
credit facility, which was used to repay maturing commercial paper,
and (iv) $40 million in proceeds resulting from the issuance of our
common stock, primarily through our Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
The receipt of cash from financing activities in fiscal 2001 was par-
tially offset by $357 million in net payments for the retirement of
commercial paper and other debt.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $42 million in fis-
cal 2000 compared with net cash used in financing activities of
$257 million in fiscal 1999. Prior to the distribution, we relied on Lucent
to provide financing for our operations. Cash flows from financing activi-
ties principally reflect changes in Lucent’s investment in us prior to the
distribution. In addition, upon the distribution, we assumed all of
Lucent’s obligations in connection with its issuance of $780 million of
commercial paper, which had a weighted average interest rate and
maturity period of approximately 6.9% and 21 days, respectively.

Our commercial paper program is composed of short-term borrow-
ings in the commercial paper market at market interest rates. Interest
rates on our commercial paper obligations are variable due to their short-
term nature. The weighted average interest rate and maturity period for
the $432 million of commercial paper outstanding as of September 30,
2001 was approximately 3.9% and 62 days, respectively.

We have two unsecured revolving credit facilities with third party
financial institutions consisting of a $400 million 364-day credit facil-
ity that expires in August 2002 and an $850 million five-year credit
facility that expires in September 2005. Funds are available under these

revolving credit facilities for general corporate purposes, to backstop
commercial paper, and for acquisitions. In September 2001, we bor-
rowed $200 million under the five-year credit facility and used the pro-
ceeds to repay maturing commercial paper. The borrowing carried a
variable interest rate of 3.5% and was repaid in October 2001 using pro-
ceeds from the issuance of commercial paper. The borrowing under the
credit facility was necessitated by disruptions in the commercial paper
markets as a result of the September 11 terrorist attacks. 

As of September 30, 2001, we classified our outstanding commer-
cial paper as long-term debt in our Consolidated Balance Sheets
since it is supported by the five-year credit facility and it is manage-
ment’s intent to reissue approximately $500 million of commercial
paper on a long-term basis. A variation of .125% in the interest rate
charged under the commercial paper program and revolving credit
facilities would result in an annual change of approximately $790,000
in interest expense based on the aggregate of variable interest rate
debt outstanding as of September 30, 2001.

In October 2000, we sold to Warburg, Pincus Equity Partners, L.P.
and related investment funds (collectively, the “Warburg Funds”)
four million shares of our Series B convertible participating preferred
stock and warrants to purchase our common stock for an aggregate
purchase price of $400 million. Based on a conversion price of
$26.71, the Series B preferred stock is convertible into 15,973,068
shares of our common stock as of September 30, 2001. 

The warrants have an exercise price of $34.73 representing 130%
of the conversion price for the Series B preferred stock. Of these
warrants, warrants exercisable for 6,883,933 shares of common
stock have a four-year term expiring on October 2, 2004, and warrants
exercisable for 5,507,146 shares of common stock have a five-year
term expiring on October 2, 2005. During the period from May 24,
2001 until October 2, 2002, if the market price of our common stock
exceeds 200%, in the case of the four-year warrants, and 225%, in the
case of the five-year warrants, of the exercise price of the warrants for
20 consecutive trading days, we can force the exercise of up to 50% of
the four-year and the five-year warrants, respectively. 

The shares of Series B preferred stock had an aggregate initial liq-
uidation value of $400 million and will accrete for the first 10 years at
an annual rate of 6.5% and 12% thereafter, compounded quarterly.
After the third anniversary of the original issue date of the Series B
preferred stock, 50% of the amount accreted for the year may be paid
in cash as a dividend on a quarterly basis at our option. After the fifth
anniversary of the issue date through the tenth anniversary, we may
elect to pay 100% of the amount accreted for the year as a cash divi-
dend on a quarterly basis. The liquidation value calculated on each
quarterly dividend payment date, which includes the accretion for the
dividend period, will be reduced by the amount of any cash dividends
paid. Following the tenth anniversary of the issue date, we will pay
quarterly cash dividends at an annual rate of 12% of the then accreted
liquidation value of the Series B preferred stock, compounded quar-
terly. The Series B preferred shares also participate, on an as-con-
verted basis, in dividends paid on our common stock. For fiscal 2001,
accretion of the Series B preferred stock was $27 million resulting in
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a liquidation value of $427 million as of September 30, 2001. The
total number of shares of common stock into which the Series B pre-
ferred stock are convertible is determined by dividing the liquidation
value in effect at the time of conversion by the conversion price. 

A beneficial conversion feature would exist if the conversion price
for the Series B preferred stock or warrants was less than the fair
value of our common stock at the commitment date. We determined
that no beneficial conversion features existed at the commitment
date and therefore there was no impact on our results of operations
associated with the Series B preferred stock or with the warrants. The
beneficial conversion features, if any, associated with dividends paid
in-kind, where it is our option to pay dividends on the Series B pre-
ferred stock in cash or in-kind, will be measured when dividends are
declared and recorded as a reduction to net income available to com-
mon stockholders. 

At any time after the fifth anniversary of their issuance, we may
force conversion of the shares of Series B preferred stock. If we give
notice of a forced conversion, the investors will be able to require us
to redeem the Series B preferred shares at 100% of the then current
liquidation value, plus accrued and unpaid dividends. Following a
change in control of us during the first five years after the investment,
other than a change of control transaction involving solely the
issuance of common stock, the accretion of some or all of the liquidation
value of the Series B preferred stock through the fifth anniversary of
the issue date will be accelerated, subject to our ability to pay a por-
tion of the accelerated accretion in cash in some instances. In addi-
tion, for 60 days following the occurrence of any change of control of
us during the first five years after the investment, the investors will be
able to require us to redeem the Series B preferred stock at 101% of
the liquidation value, including any accelerated accretion of the liqui-
dation value, plus accrued and unpaid dividends. 

Our cost of capital and ability to obtain external financing may be
affected by our debt ratings, which are periodically reviewed by the
major credit rating agencies. Our commercial paper is currently rated
P-2 by Moody’s and A-2 by Standard & Poor’s, and our long-term debt
rating is Baa1 by Moody’s and BBB by Standard & Poor’s, each with a
negative outlook. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy,
sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at
any time by the rating organization. Each rating should be evaluated
independently of any other rating. 

Our ability to issue additional equity may be constrained because
our issuance of additional equity may cause the distribution to be tax-
able to Lucent under Section 355(e) of the Internal Revenue Code,
and under the tax-sharing agreement between Lucent and us, we
would be required to indemnify Lucent against that tax.

In May 2001, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
declared effective our shelf registration statement on Form S-3 regis-
tering $1.44 billion of common stock, preferred stock, debt securities
or warrants to purchase debt securities, or any combination of these
securities, in one or more offerings through May 2003. We intend to
use the proceeds from the sale of the securities for general corporate
purposes, including debt repayment and refinancing, capital expendi-

tures and acquisitions. We also registered with the SEC for resale by
the Warburg Funds, of the preferred stock and warrants described
above and shares of common stock issuable upon conversion or exer-
cise thereof. We will not receive any proceeds from the sale by the
Warburg Funds of these securities.

In October 2001, we sold in an underwritten public offering under
our shelf registration statement an aggregate principal amount at
maturity of approximately $821 million of Liquid Yield Option™ Notes
(“LYONs”) due in 2021. In November 2001, we sold an additional
$123 million aggregate principal amount at maturity of LYONs pur-
suant to the exercise of the underwriter’s overallotment option. The
net proceeds of approximately $447 million were used to refinance a
portion of our outstanding commercial paper. Underwriting fees for
these transactions amounted to $13 million. The LYONs were issued
at a $484 million discount that will accrue daily at a rate of 3.625% per
year calculated on a semiannual bond equivalent basis. We will not
make periodic cash payments of interest on the LYONs. Instead, the
original issue discount will be recorded as interest expense and rep-
resents the accretion of the LYONs issue price to its maturity value.
The original issue discount will cease to accrue on the LYONs upon
maturity, conversion, or purchase by us at the option of the holder or
redemption. The LYONs are unsecured obligations that rank equally in
right of payment with all existing and future unsecured and unsubordi-
nated indebtedness of Avaya. 

The LYONs are convertible into 35,333,073 shares of our common
stock at any time on or before the maturity date. The conversion rate
may be adjusted for certain reasons, but will not be adjusted for
accrued original issue discount. Upon conversion, the holder will not
receive any cash payment representing accrued original issue discount.
Accrued original issue discount will be considered paid by the shares of
common stock received by the holder of the LYONs on conversion.

We may redeem all or a portion of the LYONs for cash at any time
on or after October 31, 2004 at a price equal to the sum of the issue
price and accrued original issue discount on the LYONs as of the
applicable redemption date. Conversely, holders may require us to
purchase all or a portion of their LYONs on the third, fifth and tenth
anniversary of the original issue date of the LYONs at a price equal to
the sum of the issue price and accrued original issue discount on the
LYONs as of the applicable purchase date. We may, at our option,
elect to pay the purchase price in cash or shares of common stock, or
any combination thereof. 

Our primary future cash needs on a recurring basis will be to fund
working capital, capital expenditures and debt service. We believe
that our cash flows from operations will be sufficient to meet these
needs. We expect to fund our business restructuring and related
charges through a combination of debt and internally generated
funds. If we do not generate sufficient cash from operations, we may
need to incur additional debt. We currently anticipate spending
approximately $208 million in fiscal 2002 for activities related to
business restructuring, our establishment as an independent com-
pany, and outsourcing of certain manufacturing facilities. The cash
payments are planned to be composed of $108 million for employee



separation costs, $54 million for lease obligations, $5 million for
other exit costs and $41 million for incremental period costs, including
computer transition expenditures, relocation and consolidation costs.

In order to meet our cash needs, we may from time to time issue
additional commercial paper under our commercial paper program, if
the market permits such borrowings, borrow under our revolving
credit facilities or issue other long- or short-term debt, if available. We
may also refinance all or a portion of the commercial paper program
with long-term or other shor t-term debt instruments. We cannot
assure you that any such financings will be available to us on accept-
able terms or at all. Our ability to make payments on and to refinance
our indebtedness, and to fund working capital, capital expenditures
and strategic acquisitions, will depend on our ability to generate cash
in the future, which is subject to general economic, financial, compet-
itive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our con-
trol. Our credit facilities and the indenture governing the LYONs
impose, and any future indebtedness may impose, various restric-
tions and covenants which could limit our ability to respond to market
conditions, to provide for unanticipated capital investments or to take
advantage of business opportunities. We may also incur higher than
expected interest expense in ser vicing our debt, which would
decrease our profitability.

P U R C H A S E D  I N - P R O C E S S  R E S E A R C H  A N D  D E V E L O P M E N T

In connection with our acquisitions in fiscal 2001, a portion of the pur-
chase price, $31 million for VPNet and $1 million for Quintus
Corporation, was allocated to purchased in-process research and
development. As part of the process of analyzing these acquisitions,
we made a decision to buy technology that had not yet been commer-
cialized rather than develop the technology internally. We based this
decision on factors such as the amount of time it would take to bring
the technology to market. We also considered each entity’s resource
allocation and its progress on comparable technology, if any. Our man-
agement expects to use a similar decision process in the future. 

At the date of each acquisition, the in-process research and devel-
opment projects had not yet reached technological feasibility and had
no future alternative use. Accordingly, the value allocated to these
projects was capitalized and immediately expensed at acquisition. If
the projects are not successful or completed in a timely manner, man-
agement’s product pricing and growth rates may not be achieved and
we may not realize the financial benefits expected from the projects.

The value allocated to purchased in-process research and develop-
ment for the acquisitions was determined using an income approach.
This involved estimating the fair value of the in-process research and
development using the present value of the estimated after-tax cash
flows expected to be generated by the purchased in-process research
and development, using risk-adjusted discount rates and revenue
forecasts as appropriate. Where appropriate, we deducted an amount
reflecting the contribution of the core technology from the anticipated
cash flows from an in-process research and development project. The
selection of the discount rate was based on consideration of our
weighted average cost of capital, as well as other factors, including

the useful life of each technology, profitability levels of each technol-
ogy, the uncertainty of technology advances that were known at the
time, and the stage of completion of each technology. We believe that
the estimated in-process research and development amounts so
determined represent fair value and do not exceed the amount a third
party would have paid for the projects. 

Revenue forecasts were estimated based on relevant market size
and growth factors, expected industry trends, individual product sales
cycles and the estimated life of each product’s underlying technology.
Estimated operating expenses, income taxes, and charges for the
use of contributory assets were deducted from estimated revenue to
determine estimated after-tax cash flows for each project. Estimated
operating expenses include cost of goods sold, selling, general and
administrative expenses, and research and development expenses.
The research and development expenses include estimated costs to
maintain the products once they have been introduced into the mar-
ket and generate revenue and costs to complete the purchased in-
process research and development.

The development efforts related to the majority of the purchased
in-process technology projects are progressing in accordance with the
assumptions underlying the appraisals. As expected in the normal
course of product development, a number of projects have experi-
enced delays and other projects are being evaluated due to changes
in strategic direction and market conditions. These factors are not
expected to have a material adverse effect on our results of opera-
tions and financial position in future periods. 

Set forth below are descriptions of the significant acquired in-process
research and development projects related to our acquisition of VPNet. 

In February 2001, we completed the purchase of VPNet and allo-
cated approximately $31 million to in-process research and develop-
ment projects, using the income approach described above, to the
following projects: low-end technologies for $5 million and high-end
technologies for $26 million. These projects under development at
the valuation date represent next-generation technologies that are
expected to address emerging market demands for low- and high-end
network data security needs. 

At the acquisition date, the low-end technologies under develop-
ment were approximately 80% complete based on engineering data
and technological progress. Revenue attributable to the developmental
low-end VPNet technologies was estimated to be $8 million in 2002
and $13 million in 2003. Revenue was estimated to grow at a com-
pounded annual growth rate of approximately 60% for the six years fol-
lowing introduction, assuming the successful completion and market
acceptance of the major research and development programs.
Revenue was expected to peak in 2004 and decline thereafter
through the end of the technologies’ life in 2007 as new product tech-
nologies were expected to be introduced. 

At the acquisition date, the high-end technologies under develop-
ment were approximately 60% complete, based on engineering data
and technological progress. Revenue attributable to the develop-
mental high-end VPNet technologies was estimated to be $52 mil-
lion in 2002 and $86 million in 2003. Revenue was estimated
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to grow at a compounded annual growth rate of approximately 50% for
the seven years following introduction, assuming the successful com-
pletion and market acceptance of the major research and develop-
ment programs. Revenue was expected to peak in 2004 and decline
thereafter through the end of the technologies’ life in 2008 as new
product technologies were expected to be introduced. 

VPNet had spent approximately $4 million on these in-process
technology projects, and expected to spend approximately $4 million
to complete all phases of research and development. 

The rates utilized to discount the net cash flows to their present
value were based on estimated cost of capital calculations. Due to
the nature of the forecasts and the risks associated with the success-
ful development of the projects, a discount rate of 25% was used to
value the in-process research and development. The discount rate uti-
lized was higher than our weighted average cost of capital due to the
inherent uncertainties surrounding the successful development of the
purchased in-process technology, the useful life of such technology,
the profitability levels of the technology, and the uncertainty of tech-
nological advances that are unknown at this time. 

E N V I R O N M E N T A L ,  H E A LT H  A N D  S A F E T Y  M A T T E R S

We are subject to a wide range of governmental requirements relating
to employee safety and health and to the handling and emission into
the environment of various substances used in our operations. We
are subject to certain provisions of environmental laws, particularly in
the U.S., governing the cleanup of soil and groundwater contamina-
tion. Such provisions impose liability for the costs of investigating and
remediating releases of hazardous materials at our currently or for-
merly owned or operated sites. In certain circumstances, this liability
may also include the cost of cleaning up historical contamination,
whether or not caused by us. We are currently conducting investiga-
tion and/or cleanup of known contamination at approximately five of
our facilities either voluntarily or pursuant to government directives. 

It is often difficult to estimate the future impact of environmental
matters, including potential liabilities. We have established financial
reserves to cover environmental liabilities where they are probable
and reasonably estimable. Reserves for estimated losses from envi-
ronmental matters are, depending on the site, based primarily upon
internal or third party environmental studies and the extent of con-
tamination and the type of required cleanup. Although we believe that
our reserves are adequate to cover known environmental liabilities,
there can be no assurance that the actual amount of environmental
liabilities will not exceed the amount of reserves for such matters or
will not have a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows. 

L E G A L  P R O C E E D I N G S

From time to time we are involved in legal proceedings arising in the
ordinary course of business. Other than as described below, we
believe there is no litigation pending that could have, individually or in
the aggregate, a material adverse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows. 

Y E A R  2 0 0 0  A C T I O N S

Three separate purported class action lawsuits are pending against
Lucent, one in state court in West Virginia, one in federal court in the
Southern District of New York and another in federal court in the Southern
District of California. The case in New York was filed in January 1999
and, after being dismissed, was refiled in September 2000. The case
in West Virginia was filed in April 1999 and the case in California was
filed in June 1999, and amended in 2000, to include Avaya as a
defendant. We may also be named a party to the other actions and, in
any event, have assumed the obligations of Lucent for all of these
cases under the Contribution and Distribution Agreement. All three
actions are based upon claims that Lucent sold products that were
not Year 2000 compliant, meaning that the products were designed
and developed without considering the possible impact of the change
in the calendar from December 31, 1999 to January 1, 2000. The
complaints allege that the sale of these products violated statutory
consumer protection laws and constituted breaches of implied war-
ranties. A class has not been certified in any of the three cases and,
to the extent a class is certified in any of the cases, we expect that
class to constitute those enterprises that purchased the products in
question. The complaints seek, among other remedies, compensa-
tory damages, punitive damages and counsel fees in amounts that
have not yet been specified. Although we believe that the outcome of
these actions will not adversely affect our financial position, results of
operations or cash flows, if these cases are not resolved in a timely
manner, they will require expenditure of significant legal costs related
to their defense. 

C O U P O N  P R O G R A M  C L A S S  A C T I O N

In April 1998, a class action was filed against Lucent in state court in
New Jersey, alleging that Lucent improperly administered a coupon
program resulting from the settlement of a prior class action. The
plaintiffs allege that Lucent improperly limited the redemption of the
coupons from dealers by not allowing them to be combined with other
volume discount offers, thus limiting the market for the coupons. We
have assumed the obligations of Lucent for these cases under the
Contribution and Distribution Agreement. The complaint alleges
breach of contract, fraud and other claims and the plaintiffs seek
compensatory and consequential damages, interest and attorneys’
fees. The parties have entered into a proposed settlement agree-
ment, pending final approval by the court.

L U C E N T  S E C U R I T I E S  L I T I G AT I O N

In November 2000, three purported class actions were filed against
Lucent in the Federal District Court for the District of New Jersey alleg-
ing violations of the federal securities laws as a result of the facts dis-
closed in Lucent’s announcement on November 21, 2000 that it had
identified a revenue recognition issue affecting its financial results for
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. The actions purport to be filed on
behalf of purchasers of Lucent common stock during the period from
October 10, 2000 (the date Lucent originally reported these financial
results) through November 21, 2000. 



The above actions have been consolidated with other purported
class actions filed against Lucent on behalf of its stockholders in
January 2000 and are pending in the Federal District Court for the
District of New Jersey. We understand that Lucent has filed its Answer
to the Fifth Consolidated Amended and Supplemental Class Action
Complaint in the consolidated action. The plaintiffs allege that they
were injured by reason of certain alleged false and misleading state-
ments made by Lucent in violation of the federal securities laws. The
consolidated cases were initially filed on behalf of stockholders of
Lucent who bought Lucent common stock between October 26, 1999
and January 6, 2000, but the consolidated complaint was amended to
include purported class members who purchased Lucent common
stock up to November 21, 2000. A class has not yet been certified in
the consolidated actions. The plaintiffs in all these stockholder class
actions seek compensatory damages plus interest and attorneys’ fees. 

Any liability incurred by Lucent in connection with these stock-
holder class action lawsuits may be deemed a shared contingent lia-
bility under the Contribution and Distribution Agreement and, as a
result, we would be responsible for 10% of any such liability in excess
of $50 million. All of these actions are in the early stages of litigation
and an outcome cannot be predicted and, as a result, we cannot
assure you that these cases will not have a material adverse effect on
our financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

L I C E N S I N G  M E D I AT I O N

In March 2001, a third party licensor made formal demand for alleged
royalty payments which it claims we owe as a result of a contract
between the licensor and our predecessors, initially entered into in
1995, and renewed in 1997. The contract provides for mediation of
disputes followed by binding arbitration if the mediation does not
resolve the dispute. The licensor claims that we owe royalty payments
for software integrated into certain of our products. The licensor also
alleges that we have breached the governing contract by not honoring
a right of first refusal related to development of fax software for next
generation products. We engaged in mediation with the licensor, but
did not resolve this matter. At this point, an outcome in any future pro-
ceeding cannot be predicted and, as a result, there can be no assur-
ance that this case will not have a material adverse effect on our
financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S

We are exposed to risk from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates and interest rates that could affect our results of operations,
financial position or cash flows. We manage our exposure to these
market risks through our regular operating and financing activities
and, when deemed appropriate, through the use of derivative financial
instruments. We conduct our business on a multi-national basis in a
wide variety of foreign currencies and, as such, use derivative finan-
cial instruments to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility associ-
ated with foreign exchange rate changes. We use foreign currency
forward contracts, and to a lesser extent, foreign currency options, to

mitigate the ef fects of fluctuations of exchange rates on inter-
company loans that are denominated in currencies other than the sub-
sidiary’s functional currency, and to reduce the exposure to the risk
that the eventual net cash flows resulting from the purchase or sale of
products to or from non-U.S. customers will be adversely affected by
changes in exchange rates. Derivative financial instruments are used
as risk management tools and not for speculative or trading purposes. 

R E C O R D E D  T R A N S A C T I O N S

We use foreign currency forward contracts primarily to manage
exchange rate exposures on intercompany loans residing on our for-
eign subsidiaries’ books that are denominated in currencies other
than the subsidiary’s functional currency. When these loans are
translated into the subsidiary’s functional currency at the month-end
exchange rates, the fluctuations in the exchange rates are recog-
nized in earnings as other income or expense. Gains and losses
resulting from the impact of currency exchange rate movements on
foreign currency forward contracts designated to offset these non-
functional currency denominated loans are also recognized in earn-
ings as other income or expense in the period in which the exchange
rates change and are generally offset by the foreign currency losses
and gains on the loans. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001, the net effect of the gains and losses on the change in the fair
value of the foreign currency forward contracts and the translation of
the non-functional currency denominated loans were not material to
our results of operations. 

The fair value of foreign currency exchange contracts is sensitive
to changes in foreign currency exchange rates. As of September 30,
2001 and 2000, a 10% appreciation in foreign currency exchange
rates from the prevailing market rates would increase our related net
unrealized gain for fiscal 2001 and 2000 by $13 million and $20 mil-
lion, respectively. Conversely, a 10% depreciation in these currencies
from the prevailing market rates would decrease our related net unre-
alized gain for fiscal 2001 and 2000 by $13 million and $18 million,
respectively. Consistent with the nature of the economic hedge of
such foreign currency exchange contracts, such unrealized gains or
losses would be offset by corresponding decreases or increases, respec-
tively, of the underlying asset, liability or transaction being hedged. 

F O R E C A S T E D  T R A N S A C T I O N S

We use foreign currency forward and option contracts to offset cer-
tain forecasted foreign currency transactions primarily related to the
purchase or sale of product expected to occur during the ensuing
twelve months. The gains and losses resulting from the impact of cur-
rency exchange rate movements on these foreign currency forward
and option contracts are recognized as other income or expense in
the period in which the exchange rates change. For the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, these gains and losses were
not material to our results of operations. 

Electing to not use hedge accounting under SFAS 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Investments and Hedging Activities,” could result in a
gain or loss from fluctuations in exchange rates related to a derivative
contract that is different from the loss or gain recognized from the
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underlying forecasted transaction. However, we have procedures to
manage the risks associated with our derivative instruments, which
include limiting the duration of the contracts, typically six months or
less, and the amount of the underlying exposures that can be eco-
nomically hedged. Historically, the gains and losses on these transac-
tions have not been significant. 

While we hedge many foreign currency transactions, the decline in
value of non-U.S. dollar currencies may, if not reversed, adversely affect
our ability to contract for product sales in U.S. dollars because our prod-
ucts may become more expensive to purchase in U.S. dollars for local
customers doing business in the countries of the affected currencies. 

By their nature, all derivative instruments involve, to varying
degrees, elements of market risk and credit risk not recognized in our
financial statements. The market risk associated with these instru-
ments resulting from currency exchange rate movements is expected
to offset the market risk of the underlying transactions, assets and
liabilities being economically hedged. The counterpar ties to the
agreements relating to our foreign exchange instruments consist of a
diversified group of major financial institutions. We do not believe that
there is significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance of the
counterparties because we control our exposure to credit risk through
credit approvals and limits, and continual monitoring of the credit rat-
ings of such counterparties. In addition, we limit the financial expo-
sure and the amount of agreements entered into with any one
financial institution. 

E U R O P E A N  M O N E T A R Y  U N I T  ( “ E U R O ” )

In 1999, most member countries of the European Union established
fixed conversion rates between their existing sovereign currencies
and the European Union’s new currency, the euro. This conversion
permitted transactions to be conducted in either the euro or the par-
ticipating countries’ national currencies. By February 28, 2002, all
member countries are expected to have permanently withdrawn their
national currencies as legal tender and replaced their currencies with
euro notes and coins.

The euro conversion may have a favorable impact on cross-border
competition by eliminating the effects of foreign currency translations
thereby creating price transparency. We will continue to evaluate the
accounting, tax, legal and regulatory requirements associated with
the euro introduction. We do not expect the conversion to the euro to
have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

R E C E N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P R O N O U N C E M E N T S

SFAS 141 – In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS 141”), which requires all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001 to be accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. As a result, use of the pooling-of-interests method is pro-
hibited for business combinations initiated thereafter. SFAS 141 also
establishes criteria for the separate recognition of intangible assets

acquired in a business combination. In fiscal 2001, we adopted this
Statement which did not have a material impact on our consolidated
results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

New accounting statements issued, but not yet adopted by us,
include the following:
S FA S 14 2 – In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), which requires
that goodwill and certain other intangible assets having indefinite
lives no longer be amortized to earnings, but instead be subject to
periodic testing for impairment. Intangible assets determined to have
definitive lives will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.
This Statement is effective for our 2003 fiscal year, and early adop-
tion is permitted. However, goodwill and intangible assets acquired
after June 30, 2001 are subject immediately to the non-amortization
and amortization provisions of this Statement. Effective October 1,
2001, we adopted SFAS 142 and implemented certain provisions,
specifically the discontinuation of goodwill amortization, and will be
implementing the remaining provisions by the end of fiscal 2002. In
fiscal 2001, we recorded goodwill amortization expense of $40 mil-
lion. We are currently evaluating the remaining provisions of SFAS 142
to determine the effect, if any, they may have on our consolidated
results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

SFAS 143 – In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), which pro-
vides the accounting requirements for retirement obligations associ-
ated with tangible long-lived assets. This Statement requires entities
to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation in
the period in which it is incurred. This Statement is effective for our
2003 fiscal year, and early adoption is permitted. The adoption of
SFAS 143 is not expected to have a material impact on our consoli-
dated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

SFAS 144 – In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(“SFAS 144”), which excludes from the definition of long-lived assets
goodwill and other intangibles that are not amortized in accordance
with SFAS 142. SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets to be dis-
posed of by sale be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in
discontinued operations. SFAS 144 also expands the reporting of dis-
continued operations to include components of an entity that have
been or will be disposed of rather than limiting such discontinuance to
a segment of a business. This Statement is effective for our 2003 fis-
cal year, and early adoption is permitted. We are currently evaluating
the impact of SFAS 144 to determine the effect, if any, it may have on
our consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 



REPOR T  OF  INDEPENDENT  ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Avaya Inc.:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of changes in stock-
holders’ equity and of comprehensive income (loss), and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Avaya Inc.
and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at September 30, 2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the
three years in the period ended September 30, 2001, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evalu-
ating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Until September 30, 2000, the Company was a fully integrated business of Lucent Technologies Inc. (“Lucent”); consequently, as indicated
in Note 1, these consolidated financial statements have been derived from the consolidated financial statements and accounting records of
Lucent, and reflect significant assumptions and allocations. Moreover, as indicated in Note1, prior to September 30, 2000, the Company relied on
Lucent and its other businesses for administrative, management and other services. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements as of
and for each of the two years ended September 30, 2000 do not necessarily reflect the financial position, results of operations, changes in
stockholders’ equity and cash flows of the Company had it been a separate stand-alone entity, independent of Lucent during such periods.

As discussed in Notes 2 and 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Position 98–1 “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use” in 2000 and changed its method for calculating annual pension and
postretirement benefit costs in 1999, respectively.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
New York, New York
October 24, 2001

27.



Avaya 200128.

CONSOL IDATED  STATEMENTS  OF  OPERAT IONS
Avaya Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended September 30, 
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

REVENUE

Products $4,701 $5,774 $6,368
Services 2,092 1,958 1,900

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

6,793 7,732 8,268
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

COSTS

Products 2,937 3,471 3,720
Services 960 1,012 1,040

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

3,897 4,483 4,760
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

GROSS MARGIN 2,896 3,249 3,508
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

OPERATING EXPENSES

Selling, general and administrative 2,058 2,540 2,632
Business restructuring and related charges (reversals) 837 684 (33)
Research and development 536 468 540
Purchased in-process research and development 32 – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL OPERAT ING EXPENSES 3,463 3,692 3,139
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (567) (443) 369
Other income, net 34 71 28
Interest expense (37) (76) (90)

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

INCOME (LOSS)  BEFORE INCOME TAXES (570) (448) 307
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (218) (73) 121

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

INCOME (LOSS)  BEFORE CUMULAT IVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE (352) (375) 186
Cumulative effect of accounting change (net of income taxes of $62) – – 96

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

NET INCOME (LOSS) $  (352)                             $  (375)                             $   282
����������� ����������� �����������

EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE:

Basic $ (1.33)                             $ (1.39)                            $   1.09
����������� ����������� �����������

Diluted $ (1.33)                             $ (1.39)                            $   1.03
����������� ����������� �����������

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOL IDATED  BALANCE  SHEETS
Avaya Inc. and Subsidiaries

As of September 30,
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000
��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions, except per share amounts)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 250 $ 271
Receivables, less allowances of $68 in 2001 and $62 in 2000 1,163 1,758
Inventory 649 639
Deferred income taxes, net 246 450
Other current assets 461 244

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,769 3,362
��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Property, plant and equipment, net 988 966
Prepaid benefit costs – 387
Deferred income taxes, net 529 44
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net 255 204
Other assets 107 74

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL ASSETS $4,648 $5,037
����������� �����������

LIABIL IT IES AND STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 624 $ 763
Current portion of long-term debt 145 80
Business restructuring reserve 179 499
Payroll and benefit obligations 333 491
Advance billings and deposits 133 253
Other current liabilities 604 503

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL CURRENT L IABIL IT IES 2,018 2,589
��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Long-term debt 500 713
Benefit obligations 637 421
Deferred revenue 84 83
Other liabilities 533 467

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL NON-CURRENT L IABIL IT IES 1,754 1,684
��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Commitments and contingencies

Series B convertible participating preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, 
4 million shares authorized, issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2001 395 –

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY

Series A junior participating preferred stock, par value $1.00 per share, 
7.5 million shares authorized; none issued and outstanding – –

Common stock, par value $0.01 per share, 1.5 billion shares authorized, 286,851,934 and 
282,027,675 issued and outstanding as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively 3 3

Additional paid-in capital 905 825
Accumulated deficit (379) –
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (46) (64)
Less treasury stock at cost (147,653 shares as of September 30, 2001) (2) –

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY 481 764
��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL L IABIL IT IES AND STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY $4,648 $5,037
����������� �����������

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOL IDATED  STATEMENTS  OF  CHANGES  IN  STOCKHOLDERS ’  EQU I TY  AND  OF  COMPREHENS IVE  INCOME  ( LOSS )
Avaya Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended September 30, 
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

FORMER PARENT’S NET INVESTMENT :

Beginning balance $ – $1,871 $1,854
Net income (loss) – (375) 282
Transfers to Lucent – (7,783) (8,488)
Transfers from Lucent – 7,115 8,223
Recapitalization upon Distribution – (828) –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Ending balance $ – $ – $1,871
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

COMMON STOCK:

Beginning balance $ 3 $ – $ –
Issuance of stock pursuant to the Distribution – 3 –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Ending balance $ 3 $ 3 $ –
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

ADDIT IONAL PA ID - IN  CAPITAL:

Beginning balance $ 825 $ – $ –
Additional paid-in capital resulting from the Distribution – 825 –
Issuance of warrants 32 – –
Issuance of common stock for options exercised 7 – –
Issuance of common stock to employees under the stock purchase plan 33 – –
Issuance of other stock unit awards 28 – –
Other stock transactions (Note 4) 22 – –
Adjustment to Lucent capital contribution (Notes 12 and 16) (42) – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Ending balance $ 905 $ 825 $ –
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

ACCUMULATED DEF IC IT :

Beginning balance $ – $ – $ –
Preferred stock accretion (27) – –
Net loss (352) – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Ending balance $(379) $ – $ –
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS:

Beginning balance $ (64) $ (54) $ (59)
Foreign currency translations 18 (10) 5

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Ending balance $ (46) $ (64) $ (54)
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TREASURY STOCK:

Beginning balance $ – $ – $ –
Purchase of treasury stock at cost (2) – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Ending balance $ (2) $ – $ –
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’  EQUITY $ 481 $ 764 $1,817
����������� ����������� �����������

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) :

Net income (loss) $(352) $ (375) $ 282
Other comprehensive income (loss) – foreign currency translations 18 (10) 5

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Comprehensive income (loss) $(334) $ (385) $ 287
����������� ����������� �����������

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



CONSOL IDATED  STATEMENTS  OF  CASH  FLOWS
Avaya Inc. and Subsidiaries

Year Ended September 30, 
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

OPERAT ING ACT IV IT IES:

Net income (loss) $(352) $(375) $ 282
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by 

(used for) operating activities:
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – (96)
Business restructuring and related charges (reversals) 659 595 (33)
Depreciation and amortization 273 220 212
Provision for uncollectible receivables 53 36 25
Deferred income taxes (264) (288) (2)
Purchased in-process research and development 32 – –
Gain on businesses sold (6) (44) (24)
Adjustments for other non-cash items, net 32 19 26
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of 

acquired and divested businesses:
Receivables 198 (50) 5
Inventory (6) 131 81
Accounts payable (138) 298 (47)
Payroll and benefits, net (215) (372) (12)
Advance billings and deposits (120) 55 59
Other assets and liabilities (279) 260 (45)

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)  OPERAT ING ACT IV IT IES (133) 485 431
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

INVESTING ACT IV IT IES:

Capital expenditures (341) (499) (202)
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 108 14 17
Disposal of businesses – 82 29
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (120) – –
Cash from merger – – 60
Purchases of equity investments (27) – –
Other investing activities, net 15 (25) 10

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACT IV IT IES (365) (428) (86)
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

F INANCING ACT IV IT IES:

Issuance of convertible participating preferred stock 368 – –
Issuance of warrants 32 – –
Issuance of common stock 40 – –
Transfers to Lucent, net – (741) (253)
Credit facility borrowing 200 – –
Net decrease in commercial paper (348) – –
Assumption of commercial paper from Lucent – 780 –
Proceeds from securitization of accounts receivable 200 – –
Other financing activities, net (9) 3 (4)

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED FOR)  F INANCING ACT IV IT IES 483 42 (257)
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (6) (22) (1)
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (21) 77 87
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 271 194 107

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 250 $ 271 $ 194
����������� ����������� �����������

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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1 .  B A C K G R O U N D  A N D  B A S I S  O F  P R E S E N T A T I O N

B A C K G R O U N D

On September 30, 2000, Avaya Inc. (the “Company” or “Avaya”) was
spun off from Lucent Technologies Inc. (“Lucent” or “Former Parent”)
pursuant to a contribution by Lucent of its enterprise networking busi-
nesses to the Company and a distribution of the outstanding shares of
the Company’s common stock, to Lucent stockholders (the “Distribu-
tion”). The Company provides communication systems and software
for enterprises, including businesses, government agencies and other
organizations. The Company offers a broad range of voice, converged
voice and data, customer relationship management, messaging, multi-
service networking and structured cabling products and services. 

The Company was incorporated in Delaware under the name
“Lucent EN Corp.” in February 2000 as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Lucent. In June 2000, the Company’s name was changed to “Avaya
Inc.” At the Distribution, the Company’s authorized capital stock con-
sisted of 200 million shares of preferred stock, par value $1.00 per
share, of which the Company has presently designated 7.5 million
shares as Series A junior participating preferred stock and 4 million
shares as Series B convertible participating preferred stock, and
1.5 billion shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share.

The Company adopted a rights agreement prior to the Distribution
date. The issuance of a share of the Company’s common stock also
constitutes the issuance of a Series A junior participating preferred
stock purchase right associated with such share. These rights 
may have anti-takeover effects in that the existence of the rights 
may deter a potential acquirer from making a takeover proposal or a 
tender offer.

B A S I S  O F  P R E S E N TAT I O N

The accompanying consolidated financial statements as of and for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 depict the first full year of
Avaya’s results as a stand-alone company.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the two
fiscal years ended September 30, 2000 include the Company and its
subsidiaries as well as certain assets, liabilities, and related opera-
tions transferred to the Company from Lucent immediately prior to the
Distribution. These consolidated financial statements have been
derived from the accounting records of Lucent using the historical
results of operations and historical basis of the assets and liabilities of
the enterprise networking businesses transferred to the Company.
Since no direct ownership existed among all of the various units com-
prising the Company prior to the Distribution, Lucent’s net investment in
Avaya is shown in place of stockholders’ equity in the Consolidated
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity in fiscal 2000 and
1999. Management believes these consolidated financial statements
are a reasonable representation of the financial position, results of
operations, cash flows and changes in stockholders’ equity of such
businesses as if Avaya were a separate entity during such periods.

The consolidated financial statements as of and for each of the
two years ended September 30, 2000 include allocations of certain
Lucent corporate headquarters’ assets, liabilities, and expenses

relating to these businesses that were transferred to Avaya from
Lucent. General corporate overhead has been allocated either based
on the ratio of the Company’s costs and expenses to Lucent’s costs
and expenses, or based on the Company’s revenue as a percentage
of Lucent’s total revenue. General corporate overhead primarily
includes cash management, legal, accounting, tax, insurance, public
relations, advertising and data services and amounted to $398 mil-
lion and $449 million in fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively. In addi-
tion, the consolidated financial statements for fiscal 2000 and 1999
include an allocation from Lucent to fund a portion of the costs of
basic research conducted by Lucent’s Bell Laboratories. This alloca-
tion was based on the Company’s revenue as a percentage of
Lucent’s total revenue and amounted to $75 million and $78 million
in fiscal 2000 and 1999, respectively. Management believes the
costs of corporate services and research charged to the Company are
a reasonable representation of the costs that would have been
incurred if the Company had performed these functions as a stand-
alone entity. The Company currently performs these corporate func-
tions and basic research requirements using its own resources or
purchased services.

During the periods covered by the consolidated financial state-
ments as of and for each of the two years ended September 30,
2000, Lucent used a centralized approach to cash management and
the financing of its operations. Prior to the Distribution, cash deposits
from the Company’s businesses were transferred to Lucent on a reg-
ular basis and were netted against Lucent’s net investment account.
As a result, none of Lucent’s cash or cash equivalents at the corpo-
rate level had been allocated to the Company. Changes in stock-
holders’ equity in fiscal 2000 and 1999 represent funding required
from Lucent for working capital, acquisitions or capital expenditures
after giving effect to the Company’s transfers to or from Lucent of its
cash flows from operations and other non-cash transactions between
the Company and Lucent.

Although the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations
include interest expense for each of the two fiscal years ended
September 30, 2000, the Consolidated Balance Sheets for periods
prior to the Distribution do not include an allocation of Lucent debt at
the corporate level because of the centralized approach that Lucent
used to finance its operations. The Company has assumed for pur-
poses of calculating interest expense that it would have had average
debt balances of $962 million and $1,320 million and average inter-
est rates of 7.9% and 6.8% per annum for fiscal 2000 and 1999,
respectively. The Company believes the interest rates and average
debt balances used in the calculation of interest expense reasonably
reflect the cost of financing its assets and operations during the peri-
ods prior to the Distribution.

Income taxes were calculated in fiscal 2000 and 1999 as if the
Company filed separate tax returns. However, Lucent was managing
its tax position for the benefit of its entire portfolio of businesses,
and its tax strategies were not necessarily reflective of the tax strate-
gies that the Company would have followed or will follow as a stand-
alone company. Commencing with fiscal 2001, the Company will begin
filing consolidated income tax returns for Avaya and its subsidiaries.

NOTES  TO  CONSOL IDATED  F INANC IAL  STATEMENTS
Avaya Inc. and Subsidiaries



2 .  S U M M A R Y  O F  S I G N I F I C A N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P O L I C I E S

P R I N C I P L E S  O F  C O N S O L I D AT I O N

The consolidated financial statements include all majority-owned sub-
sidiaries in which the Company exercises control. Investments in
which the Company exercises significant influence, but which it does
not control (generally a 20%–50% ownership interest), are accounted
for under the equity method of accounting. All intercompany trans-
actions and balances between and among the Company’s businesses
have been eliminated. Transactions between any of the Company’s
businesses and Lucent are included in these financial statements.

U S E  O F  E S T I M AT E S

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili-
ties, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and revenue and expenses during the period
reported. These estimates include an allocation of costs by Lucent in
fiscal 2000 and 1999, assessing the collectability of accounts receiv-
able, the use and recoverability of inventor y, the realization of
deferred tax assets, restructuring reserves, and useful lives of tangi-
ble and intangible assets, among others. The markets for the
Company’s products are characterized by intense competition, rapid
technological development and frequent new product introductions,
all of which could affect the future realizability of the Company’s
assets. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the
effects of revisions are reflected in the consolidated financial state-
ments in the period they are determined to be necessary. Actual
results could differ from these estimates.

F O R E I G N  C U R R E N C Y  T R A N S L AT I O N

Balance sheet accounts of the Company’s foreign operations are
translated from foreign currencies into U.S. dollars at period-end
exchange rates while income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates during the period. Translation gains or losses related
to net assets located outside the U.S. are shown as a component of
accumulated other comprehensive loss in stockholders’ equity. Gains
and losses resulting from foreign currency transactions, which are
denominated in a currency other than the entity’s functional currency,
are included in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

R E V E N U E  R E C O G N I T I O N

Revenue from sales of communications systems and software is rec-
ognized when contractual obligations have been satisfied, title and
risk of loss have been transferred to the customer, and collection of
the resulting receivable is reasonably assured. Revenue from the
direct sales of products that include installation services is recog-
nized at the time the products are installed, after satisfaction of all
the terms and conditions of the underlying customer contract. The
Company’s indirect sales to distribution partners are generally recog-
nized at the time of shipment if all contractual obligations have been

satisfied. The Company accrues a provision for estimated sales
returns and other allowances and deferrals as a reduction of revenue
at the time of revenue recognition, as required. Revenue from serv-
ices per formed under value-added service arrangements, profes-
sional services and services performed under maintenance contracts
are recognized over the term of the underlying customer contract or at
the end of the contract, when obligations have been satisfied. For
services performed on a time and materials basis, revenue is recog-
nized upon performance.

R E S E A R C H  A N D  D E V E L O P M E N T  C O S T S  A N D  

S O F T WA R E  D E V E L O P M E N T  C O S T S

Research and development costs are charged to expense as
incurred. The costs incurred for the development of computer soft-
ware that will be sold, leased or otherwise marketed, however, are
capitalized when technological feasibility has been established.
These capitalized costs are subject to an ongoing assessment of
recoverability based on anticipated future revenues and changes in
hardware and software technologies. Costs that are capitalized
include direct labor and related overhead.

Amortization of capitalized software development costs begins
when the product is available for general release to customers.
Amortization is recognized on a product-by-product basis on the
greater of either the ratio of current gross revenues to the total of cur-
rent and anticipated future gross revenues, or the straight-line
method over three years. Unamortized capitalized software develop-
ment costs determined to be in excess of net realizable value of the
product are expensed immediately.

C A S H  A N D  C A S H  E Q U I VA L E N T S

Cash and cash equivalents primarily represent amounts held by the
Company’s foreign operations. All highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less are considered to be
cash equivalents.

A C C O U N T S  R E C E I VA B L E  S E C U R I T I Z AT I O N

The amount attributable to the sale of a qualified trade accounts receiv-
able is removed from the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the pro-
ceeds received from the sale are reflected as cash provided by financing
activities in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The Company is
generally required to retain an interest in the trade receivables sold and
arranges for the transfer of the applicable receivables at their carrying
amount to a wholly owned bankruptcy-remote subsidiary, a special pur-
pose entity. The carrying amount of the retained interest in the receiv-
ables is reclassified to other current assets and typically approximates
fair value because of the relatively short-term nature of the receivable
collections. Costs associated with the sale of receivables are recorded
in other income, net in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The Company reviews the fair value assigned to retained interests at
each reporting date. Fair value is reviewed using similar valuation tech-
niques as those used to initially measure the retained interest and, if a
change in events or circumstances warrants, the fair value is adjusted.
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I N V E N T O R Y

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in, first-
out basis, or market.

P R O P E R T Y,  P L A N T  A N D  E Q U I P M E N T

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is determined using a straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the various asset classes. Esti-
mated lives range from three to 10 years for machinery and equip-
ment, and 40 years for buildings.

Major renewals and improvements are capitalized and minor
replacements, maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as
incurred. Upon retirement or disposal of assets, the cost and related
accumulated depreciation are removed from the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and any gain or loss is reflected in the Consolidated Statements
of Operations.

The Company adopted Statement of Position 98–1, “Accounting for
the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal
Use” in October 1999. Certain costs of computer software developed
or obtained for internal use, which were previously expensed as
incurred, are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over
three years. Costs for general and administrative, overhead, mainte-
nance and training, as well as the cost of software that does not add
functionality to the existing system, are expensed as incurred. As of
September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had unamortized inter-
nal use software costs of $68 million and $46 million, respectively.

G O O D W I L L  A N D  L O N G - L I V E D  A S S E T S

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
identifiable net assets acquired in business combinations accounted
for as purchases. Goodwill is amortized on a straight-line basis over
the periods benefited. Long-lived assets and goodwill are reviewed for
impairment whenever events such as product discontinuance, plant
closures, product dispositions or other changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. In review-
ing for impairment, the Company compares the carrying value of such
assets to the estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected
from the use of the assets and their eventual disposition. An impair-
ment loss, equal to the difference between the assets’ fair value and
their carrying value, is recognized when the estimated future cash
flows are less than their carrying amount (see Note 3 – SFAS 142).

Goodwill and other intangible assets as of September 30, 2001
and 2000 were net of accumulated amortization of $230 million and
$161 million, respectively.

F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S

The Company uses various financial instruments, including foreign
currency forward contracts, to manage and reduce risk to the Company
by generating cash flows which offset the cash flows of certain trans-
actions in foreign currencies or underlying financial instruments in

relation to their amount and timing. The Company’s derivative finan-
cial instruments are used as risk management tools and not for spec-
ulative or trading purposes. Although not material, these derivatives
represent assets and liabilities and are classified as other current
assets or other current liabilities on the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Gains and losses on the changes in the fair values of
the Company’s derivative instruments are included in other income,
net on the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 

The Company has elected to not use hedge accounting under
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 133,
“Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” which
could result in a gain or loss from fluctuations in exchange rates
related to a derivative contract which is different from the loss or gain
recognized from the underlying forecasted transaction. However, the
Company has procedures to manage risks associated with its deriva-
tive instruments, which include limiting the duration of the contracts,
typically six months or less, and the amount of the underlying expo-
sures that can be economically hedged. Historically, the gains and
losses on these transactions have not been significant.

The Company also utilizes non-derivative financial instruments
including letters of credit and commitments to extend credit.

I N C O M E  TA X E S

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method.
Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized
for the estimated future tax consequences attributable to differences
between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets
and liabilities and their respective tax bases, and operating loss and
tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are meas-
ured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those tem-
porary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect
on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recog-
nized in the Consolidated Statement of Operations in the period that
includes the enactment date. A valuation allowance is recorded to
reduce the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets if it is more likely
than not that such assets will not be realized.

O T H E R  C O M P R E H E N S I V E  I N C O M E  ( L O S S )

Other comprehensive income (loss) is recorded directly to a separate
section of stockholders’ equity in accumulated other comprehensive
loss and includes unrealized gains and losses excluded from the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. These unrealized gains and
losses consist of foreign currency translation adjustments, which are
not adjusted for income taxes since they primarily relate to indefinite
investments in non-U.S. subsidiaries. 

R E C L A S S I F I C AT I O N S

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.



3 .  R E C E N T  A C C O U N T I N G  P R O N O U N C E M E N T S

SFAS 141 – In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(“FASB”) issued Statement No. 141, “Business Combinations”
(“SFAS 141”), which requires all business combinations initiated after
June 30, 2001 to be accounted for using the purchase method of
accounting. As a result, use of the pooling-of-interests method is pro-
hibited for business combinations initiated thereafter. SFAS 141 also
establishes criteria for the separate recognition of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination. In fiscal 2001, Avaya adopted
this Statement, which did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

New accounting statements issued, but not yet adopted by the
Company, include the following:
S FA S 14 2 – In July 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” (“SFAS 142”), which requires
that goodwill and certain other intangible assets having indefinite
lives no longer be amortized to earnings, but instead be subject to
periodic testing for impairment. Intangible assets determined to have
definitive lives will continue to be amortized over their useful lives.
This Statement is effective for the Company’s 2003 fiscal year, and
early adoption is permitted. However, goodwill and intangible assets
acquired after June 30, 2001 are subject immediately to the non-
amortization and amortization provisions of this Statement. Effective
October 1, 2001, the Company adopted SFAS 142 and implemented
certain provisions, specifically the discontinuation of goodwill amorti-
zation, and will be implementing the remaining provisions by the end
of fiscal 2002. In fiscal 2001, the Company recorded goodwill amorti-
zation expense of $40 million. The Company is currently evaluating
the remaining provisions of SFAS 142 to determine the effect, if any,

they may have on the Company’s consolidated results of operations,
financial position or cash flows. 

SFAS 143 – In August 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations” (“SFAS 143”), which
provides the accounting requirements for retirement obligations asso-
ciated with tangible long-lived assets. This Statement requires enti-
ties to record the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation in the period in which it is incurred. This Statement is effec-
tive for the Company’s 2003 fiscal year, and early adoption is permit-
ted. The adoption of SFAS 143 is not expected to have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated results of operations, finan-
cial position or cash flows. 

SFAS 144 – In October 2001, the FASB issued Statement No. 144,
“Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets”
(“SFAS 144”), which excludes from the definition of long-lived assets
goodwill and other intangibles that are not amortized in accordance
with SFAS 142. SFAS 144 requires that long-lived assets to be dis-
posed of by sale be measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair
value less cost to sell, whether reported in continuing operations or in
discontinued operations. SFAS 144 also expands the reporting of dis-
continued operations to include components of an entity that have
been or will be disposed of rather than limiting such discontinuance to
a segment of a business. This Statement is ef fective for the
Company’s 2003 fiscal year, and early adoption is permitted. The
Company is currently evaluating the impact of SFAS 144 to determine
the effect, if any, it may have on the Company’s consolidated results of
operations, financial position or cash flows.

4 .  B U S I N E S S  C O M B I N A T I O N S  A N D  O T H E R  T R A N S A C T I O N S

A C Q U I S I T I O N S

The following table presents information about certain acquisitions by the Company during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001. These
acquisitions were accounted for under the purchase method of accounting, and the acquired technology valuation included existing technology,
purchased in-process research and development (“IPR&D”) and other intangibles. The consolidated financial statements include the results of
operations and the estimated fair values of the assets and liabilities assumed from the respective dates of acquisition. All charges related to
the write-off of purchased in-process research and development were recorded in the quarter in which the transaction was completed. There
were no material acquisitions accounted for under the purchase method in fiscal 2000 and 1999. 

Allocation of Purchase Price(1) Amortization Period (in years)
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Purchase Existing Other Purchased Existing Other
Acquisition Date Price Goodwill Technology Intangibles IPR&D Goodwill Technology Intangibles

����������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������� �����������������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

VPNet(2) February 6, 2001 $117 $48 $30 $16 $31 5 5 5
Quintus(3) April 11, 2001 $ 29 $ 3 $ 9 $ 3 $ 1 5 3 3

(1) Excludes amounts allocated to specific tangible assets and liabilities. 
(2) Acquisition of VPNet Technologies, Inc., a privately held distributor of virtual private network solutions and devices. The total purchase price of $117 million was paid in cash and stock options.
(3) Acquisition of substantially all of the assets, including $10 million of cash acquired, and the assumption of $20 million of certain liabilities of Quintus Corporation, a provider of comprehensive
electronic customer relationship management solutions. The Company paid $29 million in cash for these assets. 

Included in the purchase price for each of the above acquisitions was
purchased in-process research and development. At the date of each
acquisition, some of the technology had not yet reached technological

feasibility and had no future alternative use. Accordingly, the purchased
in-process research and development was written off as a charge to
earnings immediately upon consummation of the respective acquisitions.
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The charge related to VPNet purchased in-process research and devel-
opment was not tax deductible. The remaining purchase price was 
allocated to tangible and intangible assets, including goodwill, existing
technology and other intangible assets, less liabilities assumed. 

The value allocated to purchased in-process research and develop-
ment for the acquisitions was determined using an income approach.
This involved estimating the fair value of the in-process research and
development using the present value of the estimated after-tax cash
flows expected to be generated by the purchased in-process research
and development, using risk-adjusted discount rates and revenue
forecasts as appropriate. Where appropriate, the Company deducted
an amount reflecting the contribution of the core technology from the
anticipated cash flows from an in-process research and development
project. The selection of the discount rate was based on considera-
tion of the Company’s weighted average cost of capital, as well as
other factors, including the useful life of each technology, profitability
levels of each technology, the uncertainty of technology advances that
were known at the time, and the stage of completion of each technol-
ogy. The Company believes that the estimated in-process research
and development amounts so determined represent fair value and do
not exceed the amount a third party would have paid for the projects.

Revenue forecasts were estimated based on relevant market size
and growth factors, expected industry trends, individual product sales
cycles and the estimated life of each product’s underlying technology.
Estimated operating expenses, income taxes, and charges for the
use of contributory assets were deducted from estimated revenue to
determine estimated after-tax cash flows for each project. Estimated
operating expenses include cost of goods sold, selling, general and
administrative expenses, and research and development expenses.
The research and development expenses include estimated costs to
maintain the products once they have been introduced into the mar-
ket and generate revenue and costs to complete the purchased in-
process research and development. 

Management is primarily responsible for estimating the fair value
of the assets and liabilities acquired, and has conducted due dili-
gence in determining the fair value. Management has made esti-
mates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and expenses resulting from such acquisitions. Actual
results could differ from these amounts. 

P O O L I N G  O F  I N T E R E S T S  M E R G E R

In July 1999, the Company completed its merger with Mosaix, Inc., a
provider of software that manages an enterprise’s various office func-
tions and helps to deliver more responsive and efficient customer
service. Under the terms of the agreement, the outstanding common
stock of Mosaix was converted into approximately 2.6 million shares
of Lucent common stock with a value of $145 million. The financial
position and results of operations of Mosaix were immaterial to the
Company and, as such, the consolidated financial statements include
the results of operations and the historical basis of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed from the date of acquisition.

D I V E S T I T U R E S

In March 2000, the Company completed the sale of its U.S. sales divi-
sion that served small- and mid-sized businesses to Expanets, Inc.
Under the agreement, approximately 1,800 of the Company’s sales
and sales support employees were transferred to Expanets, which
became a distributor of the Company’s products to this market and a
significant customer of the Company. A gain of $45 million was recog-
nized to the extent of cash proceeds received related to the sale of
this business and is included in other income, net.

O T H E R  T R A N S A C T I O N S

AIRCRAFT SALE -LEASEBACK In June 2001, the Company sold a corpo-
rate aircraft for approximately $34 million and subsequently entered
into an agreement to lease it back over a five-year period. At the end
of the lease term, the Company has the option to renew the lease
subject to the consent of the lessors, or to purchase the aircraft for a
price as defined in the agreement. If the Company elects not to either
renew the lease or purchase the aircraft, the Company must arrange
for the sale of the aircraft to a third party. Under the sale option, the
Company has guaranteed approximately 60% of the unamortized orig-
inal cost as the residual value of the aircraft. The lease is accounted
for as an operating lease for financial statement purposes and as a
loan for tax purposes. 

OUTSOURCING OF CERTAIN MANUFACTURING FACIL IT IES In May 2001,
the Company closed the first phase of a five-year strategic manufac-
turing agreement to outsource most of the manufacturing of its com-
munications systems and software to Celestica Inc. Under the
agreement, Avaya will receive approximately $200 million in cash for
the assets it is transferring to Celestica, of which the Company has
received $188 million as of September 30, 2001. The Company 
has deferred $100 million of these proceeds, which will be recognized
to income on a straight-line basis over the term of the agreement. As
of September 30, 2001, the unamortized portion of these proceeds
amounted to $20 million in other current liabilities and $71 million in
other liabilities. The Company expects the remaining phases of the
transaction, which include closing the Shreveport, Louisiana facility,
to be completed by the end of the first quarter of fiscal 2002. 

In September 2000, in conjunction with the Company’s restructur-
ing plans to exit certain manufacturing businesses, the Company sold
its manufacturing facility located in San Jose, California, to Sanmina
Corporation. This facility produced electronic equipment used in struc-
tured cabling systems. In connection with the sale, the Company
received proceeds of approximately $18 million and recorded a loss
of approximately $1 million.

SALE OF  EQUIPMENT In fiscal 1999, the Company sold equipment,
which was previously leased to customers, for $97 million. The equip-
ment had a net book value of approximately $2 million and consisted
predominantly of discontinued product lines. Rental income gener-
ated by this equipment for fiscal 1999 was $79 million.



5 .  S U P P L E M E N T A R Y  F I N A N C I A L  I N F O R M A T I O N

S TAT E M E N T  O F  O P E R AT I O N S  I N F O R M AT I O N

Year Ended September 30,
�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
������������������������ ������������������������ ������������������������

(dollars in millions)

DEPRECIAT ION AND AMORTIZAT ION

INCLUDED IN COSTS:

Amortization of software 
development costs $ 24 $ 24 $ 14

INCLUDED IN SELL ING,  GENERAL 

AND ADMINISTRAT IVE EXPENSES:

Amortization of goodwill and 
other intangible assets 72 55 59

INCLUDED IN COSTS AND 

OPERAT ING EXPENSES:

Depreciation and amortization of 
property, plant and equipment 
and internal use software 177 141 139

������������������������ ������������������������ ������������������������

Total depreciation and 
amortization $273 $220 $212

�������� �������� ��������

OTHER INCOME,  NET

Loss on foreign currency transactions $ (5) $ (10) $ –
Gain on businesses sold 6 44 24
Interest income 27 7 –
Miscellaneous, net 6 30 4

������������������������ ������������������������ ������������������������

Total other income, net $ 34 $ 71 $ 28
�������� �������� ��������

B A L A N C E  S H E E T  I N F O R M AT I O N

As of September 30,
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000
��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

INVENTORY

Completed goods $ 420 $ 472
Work in-process and raw materials 229 167

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total inventory $ 649 $ 639
����������� �����������

PROPERTY,  PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,  NET

Land and improvements $ 46 $ 42
Buildings and improvements 485 383
Machinery and equipment 1,126 1,091
Assets under construction 47 179
Internal use software 89 50

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total property, plant and equipment 1,793 1,745
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization (805) (779)

��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 988 $ 966
����������� �����������

S U P P L E M E N TA L  C A S H  F L O W  I N F O R M AT I O N

Year Ended September 30, 2001
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

ACQUIS IT ION OF BUSINESSES:

Fair value of assets acquired, net of cash acquired $192
Less: Fair value of liabilities assumed (72)

������������������������

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired $120
��������

In the second quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company 
paid off $9 million of debt assumed from its 
acquisition of VPNet. 

Interest payments, net of amounts capitalized $ 41
��������

Income tax payments $ 66
��������

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS:

Accretion of Series B Preferred Stock (Note 8) $ 27
Fair market value of stock options issued in connection 

with acquisition (Note 4) 16
Adjustments to Contribution by Lucent 

(Notes 12 and 16):
Accounts receivable 8
Property, plant and equipment, net 7
Net benefit assets 27

������������������������

Total non-cash transactions $ 85
��������

Year Ended September 30, 2000
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

DISPOSIT ION OF BUSINESSES:

Cash proceeds $ 82
Less: Basis in net assets sold (38)

������������������������

Gain on businesses sold $ 44
��������

Payments for interest and income taxes prior to the Distribution
were paid by Lucent on behalf of the Company and do not necessarily
reflect what the Company would have paid had it been a stand-
alone company.

Net transfers to Lucent prior to the Distribution are composed pre-
dominantly of the following non-cash transactions: (1) for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2000, a $528 million increase in Former
Parent’s net investment due to prepaid pension costs and other
assets and a $439 million decrease from benefit obligations and other
accrued liabilities assumed by the Company from Lucent on the
Distribution date, and for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1999,
(2) a $96 million decrease in Former Parent’s net investment for a
change in accounting related to pension and postretirement benefit
costs, partially offset by (3) an $82 million increase in Former Parent’s
net investment attributed to the Mosaix pooling of interests merger.
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6 .  S E C U R I T I Z A T I O N  O F  A C C O U N T S  R E C E I V A B L E

In June 2001, the Company entered into a receivables purchase
agreement and transferred a designated pool of qualified trade
accounts receivable to a special purpose entity (“SPE”), which in turn
sold an undivided ownership interest to an unaffiliated financial insti-
tution. The Company, through the SPE, has a retained interest in a
por tion of the receivables, and the financial institution has no
recourse to the Company’s other assets for failure of customers to
pay when due. The assets of the SPE are not available to pay credi-
tors of the Company. The Company is responsible for defined fees
payable monthly to the financial institution for costs associated with
the outstanding capital issued by the financial institution to fund the
purchase of receivables and a backstop liquidity commitment. The
Company will continue to service, administer and collect the receiv-
ables on behalf of the financial institution and receive a fee for perfor-
mance of these services. Collections of receivables are used by the
financial institution to purchase, from time to time, new interests in
receivables up to an aggregate of $200 million. The Company is sub-
ject to certain receivable collection ratios, among other covenants
contained in the agreement. During fiscal 2001, the Company was in
compliance with such covenants. The receivables purchase agree-
ment expires in June 2002, but may be extended through June 2004
with the financial institution’s consent.

In connection with the transaction, the Company received cash
proceeds of $200 million from the sale and securitization of these
receivables. The accounts receivable balances were removed from
the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the proceeds received from the
sale were reflected as cash provided by financing activities in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows. As of September 30, 2001, the
Company had a retained interest of $153 million in the SPE’s designated
pool of qualified accounts receivable representing collateral for the
sale. The carrying amount of the Company’s retained interest, which
approximates fair value because of the relatively short-term nature of
the receivable collections, was reclassified to other current assets. 

The Company did not record an asset or liability related to any
servicing obligations because the initial measure for servicing was
determined to be adequate to compensate the Company for its serv-
icing responsibilities. Although not material, costs associated with
the sale of the receivables were recorded in other income, net in the
Consolidated Statement of Operations. No significant gain or loss
resulted from this transaction. 

7 .  B U S I N E S S  R E S T R U C T U R I N G  A N D  R E L A T E D  C H A R G E S

In fiscal 2001, the Company outsourced certain manufacturing facili-
ties and accelerated its restructuring plan that was originally adopted
in September 2000 to improve profitability and business per for-
mance as a stand-alone company. As a result, the Company recorded
a pretax charge of $872 million in fiscal 2001 for business restructur-
ing and related charges, which is expected to result in a $295 million

usage of cash. This charge was partially offset by a $35 million rever-
sal to income primarily attributable to fewer employee separations
than originally anticipated and more favorable than expected real
estate lease termination costs.

The components of the fiscal 2001 charge include $650 million of
employee separation costs, $24 million of lease termination costs,
and $198 million of other related charges. The charge for employee
separation costs is composed of $577 million primarily related to
enhanced pension and postretirement benefits, which represent the
cost of curtailment in accordance with SFAS No. 88, “Employers’
Accounting for Settlements and Cur tailments of Defined Benefit
Pension Plans and for Termination Benefits,” and $73 million for
severance, special benefit payments and other employee separation
costs. The $198 million of other related charges is composed of
$178 million for incremental period expenses primarily to facilitate
the separation from Lucent, including computer system transition
costs, and $20 million for an asset impairment charge related to
land, buildings and equipment at the Shreveport manufacturing facil-
ity that the Company expects to dispose of during fiscal 2002.
Employee separation costs of $55 million established in fiscal 2000
for union-represented employees at Shrevepor t will be paid as
enhanced severance benefits from existing pension and benefit
assets and, accordingly, such amount was reclassified in fiscal 2001
out of the business restructuring reserve and recorded as a reduction
to prepaid benefit costs.

The employee separation costs in fiscal 2001 were incurred in
connection with the elimination of 6,810 employee positions of
which 5,600 were through a combination of involuntary and volun-
tary separations, including an early retirement program targeted 
at U.S. management employees, and a workforce reduction of
1,210 employees due to the outsourcing of certain of the Company’s
manufacturing operations to Celestica. Employee separation pay-
ments that are included in the business restructuring reserve will be
made either through a lump sum or a series of payments extending
over a period of up to two years from the date of departure at each
employee’s option. This workforce reduction was substantially com-
plete as of September 30, 2001. Real estate lease termination
costs are being incurred primarily in the U.S., Europe and Asia, and
have been reduced for sublease income that management believes
is probable. Payments on lease obligations, which consist of real
estate and equipment leases, will extend through 2003. In fiscal
2001, accrued costs for lease obligations represent approximately
666,000 square feet of excess sales and services support offices,
materials, stocking and logistics warehouses, and Connectivity
Solutions facilities. As of September 30, 2001, the Company had not
yet vacated any of this space.

In fiscal 2000, the Company recorded a pretax business restruc-
turing charge of $684 million in connection with its separation from
Lucent. The components of the charge include $365 million of employee



separation costs, $127 million of lease termination costs, $28 million
of other exit costs, and $164 million of other related charges. 

The charge for employee separation costs in fiscal 2000 includes
severance, medical and other benefits attributable to the worldwide
reduction of 4,900 union-represented and management positions.
This charge is the result of redesigning the services organization by
reducing the number of field technicians to a level needed for non-
peak workloads, consolidating and closing certain U.S. and European
manufacturing facilities and realigning the sales effort to focus the
direct sales force on strategic accounts and address smaller
accounts through indirect sales channels. This workforce reduction
was substantially complete as of September 30, 2001. The charge for
lease termination obligations included approximately two million
square feet of excess manufacturing, distribution and administrative
space, of which the Company has vacated 646,000 square feet as of
September 30, 2001. Other exit costs consist of decommissioning
legacy computer systems in connection with the Company’s separation
from Lucent and terminating other contractual obligations.

In addition, in fiscal 2001 and 2000, the Company recorded
$48 million and $73 million, respectively, in selling, general and
administrative expenses for start-up activities related to establishing

independent operations, including fees for investment banking and
other professional advisors, and marketing costs associated with
establishing the Avaya brand. 

The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s business restructuring and related charges as well as the related reserve dur-
ing fiscal 2000 and 2001:

Business Restructuring Charges Other Related Charges
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Total
Total Business

Employee Lease Business Incremental Restructuring
Separation Termination Other Restructuring Asset Period and Related

Costs Obligations Exit Costs Charges Impairments Costs Charges
������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

F ISCAL 2000:

Charges $ 365 $127 $ 28 $ 520 $ 75 $ 89 $ 684
Cash payments (20) – (1) (21) – (89) (110)
Asset impairments – – – – (75) – (75)

������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������

Balance as of September 30, 2000 $ 345 $127 $ 27 $ 499 $ – $ – $ 499
������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������

F ISCAL 2001:

Charges $ 650 $ 24 $ – $ 674 $ 20 $ 178 $ 872
Reversals (17) (7) (11) (35) – – (35)
Decrease in prepaid benefit costs/increase 

in benefit obligations, net (577) – – (577) – – (577)
Cash payments (250) (66) (11) (327) – (178) (505)
Asset impairments – – – – (20) – (20)
Reclassification (55) – – (55) – – (55)

������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� ������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������

Balance as of September 30, 2001 $ 96 $ 78 $ 5 $ 179 $ – $ – $ 179
���������������� ���������������� ���������������� ���������������� ���������������� ���������������� ����������������

The $164 million of other related charges in fiscal 2000 is com-
posed of $89 million for incremental period expenses related to the
separation from Lucent, including computer system transition costs,
and a $75 million asset impairment charge that was primarily related
to an outsourcing contract with a major customer. With respect to the
asset impairment, the Company terminated its obligation under a
leasing arrangement and purchased the underlying equipment, which
had been used to support a contract with a customer to provide out-
sourcing and related services. Based on the terms of this contract,
the estimated undiscounted cash flows from the equipment’s use
and eventual disposition was determined to be less than the equip-
ment’s carrying value, and resulted in an impairment charge of
$50 million to write such equipment down to its fair value.

In fiscal 1999, the Company reversed $33 million of employee sep-
aration costs, originally established in December 1995, due to higher
than expected voluntary employee attrition. As of September 30,
1999, all prior restructuring related plans were complete and no such
reserves remained.
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8 .  C O N V E R T I B L E  P A R T I C I P A T I N G  P R E F E R R E D  S T O C K

In October 2000, the Company sold to Warburg, Pincus Equity
Partners, L.P. and related investment funds (collectively, “the Warburg
Funds”) four million shares of the Company’s Series B convertible
par ticipating preferred stock and warrants to purchase the
Company’s common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $400
million. Based on a conversion price of $26.71, the Series B preferred
stock is convertible into 15,973,068 shares of the Company’s com-
mon stock as of September 30, 2001. 

The warrants have an exercise price of $34.73 representing 130%
of the conversion price for the Series B preferred stock. Of these war-
rants, warrants exercisable for 6,883,933 shares of common stock
have a four-year term expiring on October 2, 2004, and warrants exer-
cisable for 5,507,146 shares of common stock have a five-year term
expiring on October 2, 2005. During the period from May 24, 2001
until October 2, 2002, if the market price of the Company’s common
stock exceeds 200%, in the case of the four-year warrants, and 225%,
in the case of the five-year warrants, of the exercise price of the war-
rants for 20 consecutive trading days, the Company can force the
exercise of up to 50% of the four-year and the five-year warrants,
respectively. 

The shares of Series B preferred stock had an aggregate initial liq-
uidation value of $400 million and will accrete for the first 10 years at
an annual rate of 6.5% and 12% thereafter, compounded quarterly.
After the third anniversary of the original issue date of the Series B
preferred stock, 50% of the amount accreted for the year may be paid
in cash as a dividend on a quarterly basis at the Company’s option.
After the fifth anniversary of the issue date through the tenth anniver-
sary, the Company may elect to pay 100% of the amount accreted for
the year as a cash dividend on a quarterly basis. The liquidation value
calculated on each quarterly dividend payment date, which includes
the accretion for the dividend period, will be reduced by the amount of
any cash dividends paid. Following the tenth anniversary of the issue
date, the Company will pay quarterly cash dividends at an annual rate
of 12% of the then accreted liquidation value of the Series B preferred
stock, compounded quarterly. The Series B preferred shares also par-
ticipate, on an as-conver ted basis, in dividends paid on the
Company’s common stock. For the fiscal year ended September 30,
2001, accretion of the Series B preferred stock was $27 million
resulting in a liquidation value of $427 million as of September 30,
2001. The total number of shares of common stock into which the
Series B preferred stock are convertible is determined by dividing the
liquidation value in effect at the time of conversion by the conversion
price. 

The $400 million proceeds from the Warburg Pincus investment
were initially allocated between the Series B preferred stock and war-
rants based upon the relative fair market value of each security, 
with $368 million allocated to the Series B preferred stock and

$32 million to the warrants. The fair value allocated to the Series B
preferred stock including the amount accreted for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001 was recorded in the mezzanine section of
the Consolidated Balance Sheet because the investors may require
the Company, upon the occurrence of any change of control in the
Company during the first five years from the investment, to redeem
the Series B preferred stock. As of September 30, 2001, the
Company recorded a $27 million reduction in accumulated deficit rep-
resenting the amount accreted for the dividend period. The fair value
allocated to the warrants was included in additional paid-in capital. 

A beneficial conversion feature would exist if the conversion price
for the Series B preferred stock or warrants was less than the fair
value of the Company’s common stock at the commitment date. The
Company determined that no beneficial conversion features existed
at the commitment date and therefore there was no impact on its
results of operations associated with the Series B preferred stock or
with the warrants. The beneficial conversion features, if any, associ-
ated with dividends paid in-kind, where it is the Company’s option to
pay dividends on the Series B preferred stock in cash or in-kind, will
be measured when dividends are declared and recorded as a reduc-
tion to net income available to common stockholders. 

At any time after the fifth anniversary of their issuance, the
Company may force conversion of the shares of Series B preferred
stock. If the Company gives notice of a forced conversion, the
investors will be able to require the Company to redeem the Series B
preferred shares at 100% of the then current liquidation value, plus
accrued and unpaid dividends. Following a change in control of the
Company during the first five years after the investment, other than a
change of control transaction involving solely the issuance of common
stock, the accretion of some or all of the liquidation value of the Series
B preferred stock through the fifth anniversary of the issue date will be
accelerated, subject to the Company’s ability to pay a portion of the
accelerated accretion in cash in some instances. In addition, for
60 days following the occurrence of any change of control of the
Company during the first five years after the investment, the investors
will be able to require the Company to redeem the Series B preferred
stock at 101% of the liquidation value, including any accelerated accre-
tion of the liquidation value, plus accrued and unpaid dividends. 

9 .  E A R N I N G S  ( L O S S )  P E R  S H A R E  O F  C O M M O N  S T O C K

Basic earnings (loss) per common share was calculated by dividing
net income (loss) available to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during the year. Since
the Distribution was not effective until September 30, 2000, the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding during fis-
cal 2000 and 1999 was calculated based on a twelve-to-one ratio of
Lucent’s weighted average number of shares to Avaya’s weighted
average number of shares. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share



was calculated by adjusting net income (loss) available to common stockholders and weighted average outstanding shares, assuming conver-
sion of all potentially dilutive securities including stock options, warrants and convertible participating preferred stock. 

Year Ended September 30, 
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
������������������������������ ������������������������������ ������������������������������

(dollars and shares in millions, 
except per share amounts)

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of accounting change $ (352) $ (375) $ 186
Accretion of Series B preferred stock (27) – –

������������������������������ ������������������������������ ������������������������������

Income (loss) available to common stockholders (379) (375) 186
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – 96

������������������������������ ������������������������������ ������������������������������

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $ (379) $ (375) $ 282
���������� ���������� ����������

SHARES USED IN COMPUTING EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE:

Basic 284 269 259
���������� ���������� ����������

Diluted 284 269 273
���������� ���������� ����������

EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE –  BASIC:

Income (loss) available to common stockholders $(1.33) $(1.39) $0.72
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – 0.37

������������������������������ ������������������������������ ������������������������������

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $(1.33) $(1.39) $1.09
���������� ���������� ����������

EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE –  D ILUTED:

Income (loss) available to common stockholders $(1.33) $(1.39) $0.68
Cumulative effect of accounting change – – 0.35

������������������������������ ������������������������������ ������������������������������

Net income (loss) available to common stockholders $(1.33) $(1.39) $1.03
���������� ���������� ����������

SECURIT IES EXCLUDED FROM THE COMPUTAT ION OF D ILUTED EARNINGS (LOSS)  PER COMMON SHARE:

Options(1) 52 9 2
Series B preferred stock(2) 16 – –
Warrants(1) 12 – –

������������������������������ ������������������������������ ������������������������������

Total 80 9 2
���������� ���������� ����������

(1) These securities have been excluded from the diluted earnings (loss) per common share calculation since their inclusion would be antidilutive because the option and warrant exercise prices are
greater than the average market value of the underlying stock. 
(2) In applying the “if-converted” method, the Series B convertible participating preferred stock was excluded from the diluted earnings (loss) per common share calculation since the effect of its
inclusion would have been antidilutive. 

1 0 .  L O N G - T E R M  D E B T

Long-term debt outstanding consisted of the following:
As of September 30, 

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000
������������������������ ������������������������

(dollars in millions)

Commercial paper $432 $780
Revolving credit facilities: 

364-day facility – –
Five-year facility 200 –

Other 13 13
������������������������ ������������������������

Total debt 645 793
Less: Current portion 145 80

������������������������ ������������������������

Total long-term debt $500 $713
�������� ��������

C O M M E R C I A L  PA P E R  P R O G R A M

The Company has established a commercial paper program (the “CP
Program”) pursuant to which the Company may issue up to $1.25 bil-
lion of commercial paper at market interest rates with maturities not
exceeding one year. Commercial paper issued under the CP Program
may bear interest at a fixed rate or at a floating rate that may be reset
periodically throughout the term. The floating interest rate may be
adjusted based on any one of a number of prevailing rates for the rel-
evant maturity period, as determined by the Company at the time of
issuance, including without limitation, certificate of deposit rates,
commercial paper rates for non-financial issuers, the federal funds
rate, bank prime rates and treasury bond rates.
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Under the CP Program, the Company assumed, upon the
Distribution, all of Lucent’s obligations in connection with its issuance
of $780 million of commercial paper. As of September 30, 2001 and
2000, $432 million and $700 million, respectively, in commercial
paper was classified as long-term debt in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets since it is supported by the five-year credit facility described
below and it is management’s intent to reissue the commercial paper
on a long-term basis. The weighted average yield and maturity period
for the commercial paper outstanding as of September 30, 2001 and
2000 was approximately 3.9% and 6.9% and 62 days and 21 days,
respectively.

C R E D I T  FA C I L I T I E S

The Company has two unsecured revolving credit facilities (the “Credit
Facilities”) with third party financial institutions consisting of a $400
million 364-day credit facility that expires in August 2002 and an
$850 million five-year credit facility that expires in September 2005.
Funds are available under the Credit Facilities for general corporate
purposes, to backstop commercial paper, and for acquisitions. The
Credit Facilities provide, at the Company’s option, for fixed interest
rate and floating interest rate borrowings. Fixed rate borrowings under
the Credit Facilities bear interest at a rate equal to (i) the greater of
(A) Citibank, N.A.’s base rate and (B) the federal funds rate plus 0.5%
plus (ii) a margin based on the Company’s long-term debt rating (the
“Applicable Margin”). Floating rate borrowings bear interest at a rate
equal to the LIBOR rate plus the Applicable Margin and a utilization
fee based on the Company’s long-term debt rating (the “Applicable
Utilization Fee”). Based on the Company’s current long-term debt rat-
ing, the Applicable Margins for the 364-day credit facility and the five-
year credit facility are 0.5% and 0.4%, respectively, and the Applicable
Utilization Fee for both facilities is 0.125%. 

As of September 30, 2001, $200 million was outstanding under
the five-year credit facility bearing interest at a floating rate of 
approximately 3.5%, which was repaid in October 2001. There were
no outstanding borrowings under the 364-day credit facility as of
September 30, 2001. No amounts were drawn under either credit
facility as of September 30, 2000. 

The Credit Facilities contain certain covenants, including limita-
tions on the Company’s ability to incur liens in certain circumstances
or enter into certain change of control transactions. In addition, for
each of the Company’s first three fiscal quar ters of 2001, the
Company had to maintain a ratio of annualized consolidated earnings
before interest and taxes to annualized consolidated interest
expense of at least three to one. Commencing in the fourth quarter of
fiscal 2001 and each fiscal quarter thereafter, the Company had to
maintain such ratio for the previous four consecutive fiscal quarters.
The covenant permitted the Company to exclude up to $950 million of
business restructuring and related charges and $300 million of start-up

expenses from the calculation of consolidated earnings before 
interest and taxes to be taken no later than September 30, 2001. In
August 2001, the five-year credit facility was amended to permit the
Company to exclude up to an additional $450 million of non-cash
business restructuring and related charges from the calculation of
earnings before interest and taxes during such period to be taken no
later than the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001. The Company was in com-
pliance with this covenant in fiscal 2001.

In addition, the Company, through its foreign operations, entered
into several uncommitted credit facilities totaling $118 million, of
which letters of credit of $10 million and $27 million, were issued and
outstanding as of September 30, 2001 and 2000, respectively.
Letters of credit are purchased guarantees that ensure the Company’s
performance or payment to third parties in accordance with specified
terms and conditions. Management does not believe it is practicable
to estimate the fair value of these financial instruments and does not
expect any material losses from their resolution since performance is
not likely to be required.

As of September 30, 2001 and 2000, the Company had debt out-
standing attributable to its foreign entities of $13 million.

FA I R  VA L U E

The carrying value of the Company’s commercial paper and other bor-
rowings approximate fair value due to their short-term maturities and
variable interest rates.

1 1 .  I N C O M E  T A X E S

Commencing with fiscal 2001, the Company will begin filing its own
consolidated tax returns. Prior to the Distribution, the Company’s
income taxes were reflected on a separate tax return basis and
included as part of Lucent’s consolidated income tax returns. The fol-
lowing table presents the principal reasons for the difference between
the effective tax rate and the U.S. federal statutory income tax rate:

Year Ended September 30,
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

U.S. federal statutory income 
tax rate (benefit) (35.0)% (35.0)% 35.0%

State and local income taxes, net 
of federal income tax effect (4.3) (4.8) 4.2

Tax differentials on foreign earnings (2.2) 3.7 1.9
Research credits (2.1) (2.2) (3.7)
Purchased in-process research and 

development and other acquisition 
related costs 2.4 – –

Amortization of intangibles 1.8 2.3 7.0
Non-deductible restructuring costs 2.3 18.2 –
Other differences – net (1.2) 1.5 (5.0)

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Effective tax rate (benefit) (38.3)% (16.3)% 39.4%
����������� ����������� �����������



The following table presents the U.S. and foreign components of
income (loss) before income taxes and the provision (benefit) for
income taxes:

Year Ended September 30,
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

(dollars in millions)

INCOME (LOSS)  BEFORE INCOME TAXES:

U.S. $(456) $(588) $173
Foreign (114) 140 134

��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

Income (loss) before income taxes $(570) $(448) $307
��������� ��������� ���������

PROVIS ION (BENEF IT )  FOR INCOME TAXES:

CURRENT

Federal $ – $ 130 $ 45
State and local – 11 19
Foreign 46 74 59

��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

Subtotal $ 46 $ 215 $123
��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

DEFERRED

Federal $(219) $(244) $ (3)
State and local (38) (44) 1
Foreign (7) – –

��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

Subtotal $(264) $(288) $ (2)
��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

Provision (benefit) for income taxes $(218) $ (73) $121
��������� ��������� ���������

As of September 30, 2001, the Company had tax credit carryfor-
wards of $18 million and federal, state and local, and foreign net oper-
ating loss carryforwards (after-tax) of $305 million. The tax credit
carryforwards expire primarily after the year 2003. Federal and state
net operating loss carryforwards expire through the year 2021. The
majority of foreign net operating loss carryforwards have no expiration.

The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of
September 30, 2001 and 2000 are as follows:

As of September 30,
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000
��������������������������� ���������������������������

(dollars in millions)

DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS

Benefit obligations $249 $119
Accrued liabilities 353 459
Net operating loss/credit carryforwards 323 35
Valuation allowance (49) (49)
Other 7 5

��������������������������� ���������������������������

Total deferred tax assets $883 $569
��������� ���������

DEFERRED INCOME TAX L IABIL IT IES

Property, plant and equipment $ 37 $ 29
Other 71 46

��������������������������� ���������������������������

Total deferred tax liabilities $108 $ 75
��������� ���������

The valuation allowance established for deferred tax assets prima-
rily relates to state tax credit carryforwards and foreign net operating
loss carryforwards for which management believes it is more likely
than not such deferred tax amounts will not be realized.

The Company has not provided for U.S. deferred income taxes or
foreign withholding taxes on $534 million of undistributed earnings of
its non-U.S. subsidiaries as of September 30, 2001, since the
Company intends to reinvest these earnings indefinitely. 

1 2 .  B E N E F I T  O B L I G A T I O N S  

P E N S I O N  A N D  P O S T R E T I R E M E N T  B E N E F I T S

The Company maintains defined benefit pension plans covering the
majority of its employees and retirees, and postretirement benefit
plans for retirees that include healthcare benefits and life insurance
coverage. At the Distribution, the Company assumed responsibility for
pension and postretirement benefit obligations for its active employ-
ees. Obligations related to retired and terminated vested employees
as of September 30, 2000 remained the responsibility of Lucent.
Prior to the Distribution, the Company’s employees participated in the
Lucent pension plans and postretirement benefit plans. The
Company’s share of the Lucent plans’ assets and liabilities was not
included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements until the
Distribution since Lucent had not yet separated Avaya’s portion of the
employee benefit plans. 

In connection with the Distribution, the Company recorded esti-
mates in its Consolidated Balance Sheet at September 30, 2000 in
prepaid benefit costs and benefit obligations of various existing Lucent
benefit plans related to employees for whom the Company assumed
responsibility. Following an actuarial review, the Company received a
valuation, agreed upon by the Company and Lucent, that reduced pre-
paid benefit costs by $44 million and pension and postretirement ben-
efit obligations by $17 million. The Company recorded the net effect 
of these adjustments as a reduction to additional paid-in capital in fis-
cal 2001 because the transfer of the net benefit assets relates to the
original capital contribution from Lucent. 

The pension and postretirement costs incurred by Lucent for
employees who performed services for the Company were based on
estimated plan assets being equal to a proportional share of plan
obligations incurred by Lucent for employees who performed services
for the Company. In relation to the Lucent plans, the Company
recorded pension expense of $115 million and $126 million, and
postretirement expense of $49 million and $53 million in fiscal 2000
and 1999, respectively, as adjusted through the Former Parent’s net
investment. In fiscal 2001, the Company recorded pension and
postretirement expense of $457 million and $138 million, respec-
tively, including charges for curtailment and special termination bene-
fits of $474 million and $112 million, respectively, in connection with
the Company’s business restructuring efforts.

During fiscal 2001, as a result of the restructuring initiatives, the
Company’s pension plans experienced significant decreases in the
number of active employees. In fiscal 2001, as a result of the manu-
facturing outsourcing transaction and an early retirement program,
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interim measurements were performed and curtailment accounting
was implemented. The Company recognized a loss from curtailment
and special termination benefits related to its pension plan of
$26 million and $448 million, respectively. The special termination
benefits provided employees with improved pension benefits and ear-
lier eligibility for postretirement benefits. In addition, ef fective
August 1, 2001, the Company amended its pension plan for salaried
employees by increasing the minimum retirement age which resulted
in a $76 million decrease to the projected benefit obligation.

The Company has several non-pension postretirement benefit
plans. Consistent with the cur tailment accounting recorded for
pensions during fiscal 2001, the Company recorded curtailment and
special termination benefit charges of $91 million and $21 mil-
lion, respectively.

Effective August 1, 2001, the Company also amended its post-
retirement benefits for salaried employees by decreasing the maxi-
mum employer contribution to retiree healthcare coverage from 90%

to 75%. In addition, the Company amended the point in time when life
insurance begins to be reduced. Under the amended plan, retiree life
insurance will be reduced by 10% a year beginning one year after
retirement, until 50% of the original coverage amount is reached.
Previously, this reduction started when the retiree reached age 66.
The net effect of these amendments resulted in a decrease in the
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation of $35 million.

Effective October 1, 1998, the Company changed its method for
calculating the market-related value of plan assets used in determin-
ing the expected return-on-asset component of annual net pension
and postretirement benefit costs. The cumulative effect of this
accounting change related to periods prior to fiscal 1999 of $158 mil-
lion ($96 million after-tax) is reflected as a one-time, non-cash credit
to fiscal 1999 earnings. This accounting change also resulted in a
reduction in benefit costs in fiscal 1999 that increased income by
$30 million ($18 million after-tax).

The following table shows the activity in Avaya’s defined benefit and postretirement plans:
Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

As of September 30, As of September 30,
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 2001 2000
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

CHANGE IN BENEF IT  OBL IGAT ION

Benefit obligation as of October 1 $1,758 $2,688 $ 412 $ 604
Adjustment for final obligation assumed from Lucent (174) – (48) –
Service cost 79 115 11 16
Interest cost 128 195 30 44
Amendments (76) – (35) –
Actuarial loss (gain) 399 (1,240) 124 (252)
Special termination benefits 448 – 21 –
Reclassification (Note 7) 55 – – –
Benefits paid (99) – (2) –

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Benefit obligation as of September 30 $2,518 $1,758 $ 513 $ 412
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS

Fair value of plan assets as of October 1 $2,985 $2,450 $ 255 $ 222
Actual return on plan assets (255) 584 (44) 33
Adjustment for final assets assumed from Lucent (260) – (36) –
Employer contributions – – 1 –
Benefits paid (99) – (2) –
Transfer to former affiliates – (49) – –

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Fair value of plan assets as of September 30 $2,371 $2,985 $ 174 $ 255
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

FUNDED (UNFUNDED)  STATUS OF THE PLAN $  (147) $1,227 $(339) $(157)
Unrecognized prior service cost (5) 133 (16) 35
Unrecognized transition asset (7) (22) – –
Unrecognized net (gain)/loss (11) (951) 34 (76)

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost                                                                                                  $  (170) $   387 $(321) $(198)
����������� ����������� ����������� �����������



As of September 30,
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000
���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

PENSION AND POSTRET IREMENT BENEF ITS WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS

Discount rate 7.0% 7.5%
Expected return on plan assets 9.0% 9.0%
Rate of compensation increase 4.5% 4.5%

For postretirement healthcare, a 5.7% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered healthcare benefits was assumed for fiscal
year 2002. The rate was assumed to decline gradually to 3.9% by the year 2007, and remain at that level thereafter.

Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Year ended September 30, Year ended September 30,
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

COMPONENTS OF NET PERIODIC BENEF IT  COST

Service cost $ 79 $ 115 $ 125 $ 11 $ 16 $ 19
Interest cost 128 195 167 30 44 42
Expected return on plan assets (208) (200) (171) (18) (17) (15)
Amortization of unrecognized prior service cost 16 23 22 5 7 7
Recognized net actuarial gain (19) (1) – (2) (1) –
Amortization of transition asset (13) (17) (17) – – –
Curtailment expense 26 – – 91 – –
Special termination benefits 448 – – 21 – –

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Net periodic benefit cost $ 457 $ 115 $  126 $138 $ 49 $ 53
����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� �����������

As of September 30, 2001, the Company’s pension and post-
retirement plan assets did not hold any direct investment in Avaya
common stock. As of September 30, 2000, the Lucent pension plan
assets included $102 million and the postretirement plan assets
included $3 million of Avaya and Lucent common stock.

A one-percentage-point change in the Company’s healthcare cost
trend rate would have the following effects:

One-Percentage-Point
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Increase Decrease
����������������������������������� �����������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

Effect on total of service and interest 
cost components $0.1 $(0.1)

Effect on postretirement benefit obligation $0.6 $(0.8)

S AV I N G S  P L A N S

The majority of the Company’s employees are eligible to participate in
savings plans sponsored by the Company. The plans allow employees
to contribute a portion of their compensation on a pre-tax and/or
after-tax basis in accordance with specified guidelines. Avaya
matches a percentage of employee contributions up to certain limits.
The Company’s expense related to these savings plans was $58 mil-
lion in fiscal 2001. Lucent had similar plans prior to the Distribution of
which the Company’s expense was $54 million and $68 million in
2000 and 1999, respectively.

1 3 .  S T O C K  C O M P E N S A T I O N  P L A N S  

Prior to fiscal 2001, certain employees of the Company were granted
stock options and other equity-based awards under Lucent’s stock-
based compensation plans. At the time of the Distribution, unvested
awards outstanding under Lucent’s stock plans that were held by
Lucent employees who transferred to the Company were converted to
awards to acquire stock of Avaya. Vested Lucent stock options have
remained options to acquire Lucent common stock, subject to adjust-
ments as described below. The Avaya stock options and other awards
as converted have the same vesting provisions, option periods, and
other terms and conditions as the Lucent options and awards they
replaced. The number of shares and exercise price of each stock option
has been adjusted so that each option, whether a Lucent option or an
Avaya option, has the same ratio of the exercise price per share to the
market value per share, and the same aggregate difference between
market value and exercise price (intrinsic value), as the Lucent stock
options prior to the Distribution. Upon conversion, the stock options
retained the measurement date from the original issuance.

S T O C K  O P T I O N S

Stock options generally are granted with an exercise price equal to
the market value of a share of common stock on the date of grant,
have a term of 10 years or less and vest within four years from the
date of grant. As of September 30, 2001, there were approximately
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23 million stock options authorized for grant to purchase Avaya com-
mon stock under the Company’s stock compensation plans, excluding
those stock options assumed by the Company from Lucent and con-
verted to Avaya stock options at the Distribution date.

In connection with certain of the Company’s acquisitions, out-
standing stock options held by employees of acquired companies
became exercisable, according to their terms, for Avaya’s common
stock effective at the acquisition date. For acquisitions accounted for
as purchases, the fair value of these options was included as part of
the purchase price.

The Company has adopted the disclosure requirements of SFAS
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” and, as permit-
ted under SFAS No. 123, applies Accounting Principles Board Opinion
(“APB”) No. 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock
compensation plans. Compensation expense recorded under APB
No. 25, which uses the intrinsic-value method, was $10 million,
$7 million and $14 million for the years ended September 30, 2001,
2000 and 1999, respectively. If the Company had elected to adopt the
optional recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123, which uses the fair
value-based method, for its stock option plans and employee stock
purchase plan, net income (loss) would have been changed to the pro
forma amounts indicated below:

Year Ended September 30,
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

(dollars in millions)

NET INCOME (LOSS)

As reported $(352) $(375) $282
Pro forma $(429) $(469) $231

The fair value of stock options used to compute pro forma net
income disclosures is the estimated fair value at grant date using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Year Ended September 30,
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� 

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������� ��������������������������� ���������������������������

WEIGHTED AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS

Dividend yield 0% 0.20% 0.13%
Expected volatility 50.4% 38.4% 34.1%
Risk-free interest rate 5.7% 6.3% 5.3%
Expected holding period (in years) 3.3 2.8 3.8

The following table summarizes information concerning options
outstanding including the related transactions for the fiscal year
ended September 30, 2001 and a summary for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2000 and 1999 of the Lucent stock options held by
employees for whom the Company has assumed responsibility. Stock
option activity for fiscal 2000 and 1999 may not necessarily be indica-
tive of what the activity would have been had the Company been a
stand-alone entity during these periods.

Weighted 
Shares Average
(000’s) Exercise Price

������������������������������������� ���������������������������������������������������

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1998 27,066 $20.99
Granted/Assumed 6,814 49.81
Exercised (2,246) 11.44
Forfeited/Expired (33) 36.86

�������������������������������������

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 1999 31,601 27.87
Granted/Assumed 18,431 52.66
Exercised (5,124) 12.26
Forfeited/Expired/Transferred(1) (7,176) 28.37

�������������������������������������

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2000

( IMMEDIATELY PRIOR TO DISTRIBUTION) 37,732 41.90
Less: Lucent vested options (7,147) 17.50

�������������������������������������

Lucent unvested options to be converted 30,585 47.61
������������

AVAYA OPTIONS CONVERTED AT DISTRIBUTION DATE, 

SEPTEMBER 30,  2000 44,971 31.63
Granted/Assumed 31,626 15.00
Exercised (1,384) 4.81
Forfeited/Expired/Exchanged(2) (26,890) 30.35

�������������������������������������

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2001 48,323 $19.83
������������

(1) Includes 7,133 options attributable to the movement of employees between Avaya and
Lucent during the year.
(2) Includes the exchange of 19,506 employee stock options for restricted stock units, as noted
below.

The weighted average fair value of Avaya’s stock options granted
during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001 and Lucent’s stock
options granted during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2000
and 1999, calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model,
was $5.86, $15.75 and $19.21 per share, respectively.

The following table summarizes the status of the Company’s stock
options as of September 30, 2001:

Stock Options Stock Options 
Outstanding Exercisable

������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Average Weighted Weighted
Remaining Average Average

Range of Shares Contractual Exercise Shares Exercise
Exercise Prices (000’s) Life (Years) Price (000’s) Price

�������������������������������������� �������������������������������������� �������������������������������������� �������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������

$ 0.01 to $10.00 951 7.64 $ 6.18 608 $ 5.35
$10.01 to $16.89 25,968 8.97 14.35 792 13.77
$16.90 to $34.98 19,846 4.74 25.98 11,530 27.37
$34.99 to $44.11 1,316 8.02 40.13 331 40.14
$44.12 to $61.98 242 8.17 47.33 99 47.81

�������������������������������������� ��������������������������������������

Total 48,323 $19.83 13,360 $26.03
������������ ������������

There were no stock options exercisable as of September 30, 2000
and 1999.



R E S T R I C T E D  S T O C K  U N I T S

In June 2001, the Company commenced an offer to eligible employ-
ees to exchange (the “Exchange”) certain employee stock options for
restricted stock units representing common shares. The Exchange
was based on a predetermined exchange value divided by $12.85 per
common share, which was the average of the high and low trading
prices of Avaya common stock on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) on July 26, 2001. As a result of the Exchange, approximately
19.5 million options were cancelled and approximately 3.4 million
restricted stock units were granted on July 31, 2001. The restricted
stock units resulting from the Exchange will vest in three succeeding
annual anniversary dates beginning on August 1, 2002, subject to
acceleration of vesting upon certain events. 

The Company recorded approximately $43 million as non-cash
deferred compensation for the intrinsic value of the restricted stock
units on the effective date of the Exchange. This amount was calcu-
lated by multiplying the number of restricted stock units by $12.62,
which was the average of the high and low trading price of the
Company’s common stock on the NYSE on July 31, 2001, the date of
grant of the restricted stock units. The non-cash deferred compensa-
tion associated with the restricted stock units will be recognized as
expense on a straight-line basis over the three-year vesting period. 

Restricted stock units are granted under certain award plans. The
following table presents the total number of shares of common stock
represented by restricted stock units granted to Company employees,
including those granted in connection with the Exchange:

Year Ended September 30,
��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Restricted stock units 
granted (000’s) 4,394 496 10

Weighted average market value of 
shares granted during the period $13.06 $57.83 $47.73

As of September 30, 2001, the Company recognized $17 million of
non-cash compensation expense related to restricted stock units, of
which approximately $7 million was recorded as a business restruc-
turing charge attributable to the vesting of 326,000 restricted stock
units related to employees who departed the business.

E M P L O Y E E  S T O C K  P U R C H A S E  P L A N  ( “ E S P P ” )

Under the terms of the Avaya ESPP, eligible employees may have up
to 10% of eligible compensation deducted from their pay to purchase
common stock through March 31, 2003, the expiration date of the
existing plan. The per share purchase price is 85% of the average high
and low per share trading price of Avaya’s common stock on the NYSE
on the last trading day of each month. During fiscal 2001, 3 million
shares were purchased under the Avaya ESPP at a weighted average
price of $10.95. In fiscal 2000 and 1999, 1.3 million and 1.2 million
Lucent shares, respectively, were purchased under the Lucent ESPP
by employees who were transferred to the Company upon the
Distribution, at a weighted average price of $45.50 and $47.02,
respectively.

1 4 .  D E R I V A T I V E  F I N A N C I A L  I N S T R U M E N T S

The Company conducts its business on a multi-national basis in a
wide variety of foreign currencies and, as such, uses derivative finan-
cial instruments to reduce earnings and cash flow volatility associ-
ated with foreign exchange rate changes. The Company uses foreign
currency forward contracts, and to a lesser extent, foreign currency
options, to mitigate the effects of fluctuations of exchange rates on
intercompany loans which are denominated in currencies other than
the subsidiary’s functional currency, and to reduce exposure to the
risk that the eventual net cash flows resulting from the purchase or
sale of products to or from non-U.S. customers will be adversely
affected by changes in exchange rates. 

R E C O R D E D  T R A N S A C T I O N S

Foreign currency forward contracts are used primarily to manage
exchange rate exposures on intercompany loans residing on foreign
subsidiaries’ books, which are denominated in currencies other than
the subsidiary’s functional currency. When these loans are translated
into the subsidiary’s functional currency at the month-end exchange
rates, the fluctuations in the exchange rates are recognized in earn-
ings as other income or expense. Gains and losses resulting from the
impact of currency exchange rate movements on foreign currency for-
ward contracts designated to offset these non-functional currency
denominated loans are also recognized in earnings as other income
or expense in the period in which the exchange rates change and are
generally offset by the foreign currency losses and gains on the loans.
For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, the net
effect of the gains and losses from the change in the fair value of the
foreign currency forward contracts and the translation of the non-func-
tional currency denominated loans were not material to the
Company’s results of operations. 

F O R E C A S T E D  T R A N S A C T I O N S

Foreign currency forward and option contracts are used to offset cer-
tain forecasted foreign currency transactions primarily related to the
purchase or sale of product expected to occur during the ensuing
twelve months. The gains and losses resulting from the impact of cur-
rency exchange rate movements on these foreign currency forward
and option contracts are recognized as other income or expense in
the period in which the exchange rates change. For the fiscal years
ended September 30, 2001 and 2000, these gains and losses were
not material to the Company’s results of operations. 

The Company engages in foreign currency hedging activities to
reduce the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect
the eventual net cash flows resulting from the sale of products to for-
eign customers and purchases from foreign suppliers. The Company
believes that it has achieved risk reduction and hedge effectiveness
because the gains and losses on its derivative instruments substan-
tially offset the losses and gains on the assets, liabilities and trans-
actions being hedged. Hedge effectiveness is periodically measured
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by comparing the change in fair value of each hedged foreign currency
exposure at the applicable market rate with the change in market
value of the corresponding derivative instrument.

The notional amounts as of September 30, 2001 and 2000 of the
Company’s foreign exchange forward contracts were $175 million and
$339 million, respectively, and foreign exchange option contracts
were $17 million and $24 million, respectively. In fiscal 2001, these
notional amounts principally represent contracts in British pounds,
Canadian dollars and Australian dollars. Notional amounts represent
the face amount of the contractual arrangements and the basis on
which U.S. dollars are to be exchanged and are not a measure of mar-
ket or credit exposure.

FA I R  VA L U E

The Company’s foreign currency forward exchange contracts and
options were assets and had a net carrying amount and an estimated
fair value each of $1 million as of September 30, 2001. Market
quotes were used to estimate the fair value of foreign currency for-
ward contracts and options. 

N O N - D E R I VAT I V E  A N D  O F F - B A L A N C E - S H E E T  I N S T R U M E N T S

Requests for providing commitments to extend credit and financial
guarantees are reviewed and approved by senior management.
Management regularly reviews all outstanding commitments, letters
of credit and financial guarantees, and the results of these reviews
are considered in assessing the adequacy of the Company’s reserve
for possible credit and guarantee losses.

As of September 30, 2001 and 2000, in management’s opinion,
there was no significant risk of loss in the event of non-performance
of the counterparties to these financial instruments.

1 5 .  O P E R A T I N G  S E G M E N T S  

The Company repor ts its operations in three segments:
Communications Solutions, Services and Connectivity Solutions. The
Communications Solutions segment represents the Company’s core
business, composed of enterprise voice communications systems
and software, communications applications, professional services for
customer relationship management, converged voice and data net-
works and unified communication, multi-service networking products
and product installation services. The Services segment represents
maintenance, value-added and data ser vices. The Connectivity
Solutions segment represents structured cabling systems and elec-
tronic cabinets. The costs of shared services and other corporate
center operations managed on a common basis represent business
activities that do not qualify for separate operating segment reporting
and are aggregated in the Corporate and other category. 

In the first quarter of fiscal 2001, the Company realigned the
method of allocating costs of shared services and other corporate
center operations managed outside of the reportable segments.
Financial data for the periods prior to the realignment have been
restated to conform to the current presentation. 

R E P O R TA B L E  S E G M E N T S

Year Ended September 30, 
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

COMMUNICAT IONS SOLUTIONS:

External revenue $3,377 $4,354 $5,088
Intersegment revenue – 9 24

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total revenue 3,377 4,363 5,112
Operating income 726 1,375 1,704
Assets 1,794 1,795 2,204
Capital expenditures 27 137 64
Depreciation and amortization 121 131 138

SERVICES:

External revenue $2,092 $1,958 $1,900
Intersegment revenue – – –

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total revenue 2,092 1,958 1,900
Operating income 1,010 798 704
Assets 669 680 599
Capital expenditures 15 63 20
Depreciation and amortization 29 27 23

CONNECTIV ITY  SOLUTIONS:

External revenue $1,322 $1,418 $1,274
Intersegment revenue – 1 8

��������������������������������� ��������������������������������� ���������������������������������

Total revenue 1,322 1,419 1,282
Operating income 387 265 225
Assets 619 804 707
Capital expenditures 26 22 51
Depreciation and amortization 29 42 37

R E C O N C I L I N G  I T E M S

A reconciliation of the totals reported for the operating segments to
the corresponding line items in the consolidated financial statements
is as follows:

Year Ended September 30, 
����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999
������������������������������������ ������������������������������������ ������������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

EXTERNAL REVENUE

Total reportable segments $ 6,791 $ 7,730 $ 8,262
Corporate and other 2 2 6

������������������������������������ ������������������������������������ ������������������������������������

Total external revenue $ 6,793 $ 7,732 $ 8,268
������������ ������������ ������������

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

Total reportable segments $ 2,123 $ 2,438 $ 2,633
Corporate and other:

Business restructuring and 
related (charges) reversals 
and start-up expenses (885) (757) 33

Corporate and unallocated 
shared expenses (1,805) (2,124) (2,297)

������������������������������������ ������������������������������������ ������������������������������������

Total operating income (loss) $ (567) $ (443) $ 369
������������ ������������ ������������



Corporate and unallocated shared expenses include costs such as selling, research and development, marketing, information technology
and finance that are not directly managed by or identified with the reportable segments. 

G E O G R A P H I C  I N F O R M AT I O N

External Revenue(1) Long-Lived Assets(2)
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Year Ended September 30, As of September 30,
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

(dollars in millions)

EXTERNAL REVENUE(1)

U.S. $5,158 $6,110 $6,683 $868 $850 $583
Foreign countries 1,635 1,622 1,585 120 116 93

���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

Total $6,793 $7,732 $8,268 $988 $966 $676
����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� �����������

(1) Revenue is attributed to geographic areas based on the location of customers. 
(2) Represents property, plant and equipment, net.

C O N C E N T R AT I O N S

The Company sells its products and services to a broad set of enter-
prises ranging from large, multi-national enterprises, to small- and
mid-sized enterprises, governments agencies and schools. Manage-
ment believes that the Company is exposed to minimal risk since the
majority of its business is conducted with companies within numerous
industries. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers’ financial condition and may require collateral for its
accounts receivables. In some cases, the Company will require pay-
ment in advance or security in the form of a letter of credit or third
party guarantees. 

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2001, sales to Avaya’s
largest distributor, which are included in the Communications
Solutions segment, were approximately 10% of the Company’s rev-
enue, and accounts receivable from such distributor, including
amounts outstanding under the line of credit described below, repre-
sented 15% of the Company’s total accounts receivable. No single
customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s revenue
and accounts receivable as of and for the fiscal years ended
September 30, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

During fiscal 2001, the Company granted a short-term line of credit
for the purchase of Avaya products and services to its largest distributor.
The credit line applies to certain unpaid and outstanding receivables and
the maximum amount available under the credit agreement is $125 mil-
lion. Outstanding amounts under the credit agreement, which expires in
March 2002, are secured by the distributor’s accounts receivable and
inventory and accrue interest at an annual rate of 12%. Interest pay-
ments are due to the Company monthly. Upon termination of this agree-
ment, the distributor is required to obtain a collateralized commercial
credit facility to replace the existing credit line and repay in full all
amounts due under the credit line. As of September 30, 2001, the
amount outstanding under the line of credit was $121 million, of which
$71 million is included in receivables and $50 million is included in other
current assets. There can be no assurance that the distributor will be
able to obtain financing sufficient to satisfy all of its obligations under
the line of credit upon termination of the credit agreement.

As a result of the contract manufacturing transaction, Celestica exclu-
sively manufactures substantially all of the Company’s Communications
Solutions products at various facilities in the U.S. and Mexico. The
Company is not obligated to purchase products from Celestica in any
specific quantity, except as the Company outlines in forecasts or
orders for products required to be manufactured by Celestica. In addi-
tion, Avaya may be obligated to purchase certain excess inventory lev-
els from Celestica that could result from the Company’s actual sales
of product varying from forecast. The Company’s outsourcing agree-
ment with Celestica results in a concentration that, if suddenly elimi-
nated, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s operations.
While the Company believes that alternative sources of supply would
be available, disruption of its primary source of supply could create a
temporary, adverse effect on product shipments. The Company is not
aware of any other significant concentration of business transacted
with a particular supplier that could, if suddenly eliminated, have a
material adverse affect on the Company’s financial position, results
of operations or cash flows. 

1 6 .  T R A N S A C T I O N S  W I T H  L U C E N T  A N D  O T H E R  R E L A T E D  P A R T Y

T R A N S A C T I O N S  

Subsequent to the Distribution, Lucent was no longer a related party.
For the fiscal years 2000 and 1999, the Company had $98 million
and $108 million, respectively, of revenue for products sold to Lucent.
For the fiscal years 2000 and 1999, the Company had $261 million
and $189 million, respectively, of products purchased from Lucent.

C O N T R I B U T I O N  A N D  D I S T R I B U T I O N  A G R E E M E N T

In connection with the Distribution, the Company and Lucent executed
and delivered the Contribution and Distribution Agreement and cer-
tain related agreements. 

Pursuant to the Contribution and Distribution Agreement, Lucent
contributed to the Company substantially all of the assets, liabilities
and operations associated with its enterprise networking businesses
(the “Company’s Businesses”). The Contribution and Distribution
Agreement, among other things, provides that, in general, the
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Company will indemnify Lucent for all liabilities including certain 
pre-Distribution tax obligations of Lucent relating to the Company’s
Businesses and all contingent liabilities primarily relating to the
Company’s Businesses or otherwise assigned to the Company. In
addition, the Contribution and Distribution Agreement provides that
certain contingent liabilities not allocated to one of the parties will be
shared by Lucent and the Company in prescribed percentages. The
Contribution and Distribution Agreement also provides that each party
will share specified portions of contingent liabilities based upon
agreed percentages related to the business of the other party that
exceed $50 million. 

In addition, if the Distribution fails to qualify as a tax-free distribu-
tion under Section 355 of the Internal Revenue Code because of an
acquisition of the Company’s stock or assets, or some other actions
of the Company, then the Company will be solely liable for any result-
ing corporate taxes.

The Company has resolved all of the Contribution and Distribution
issues with Lucent related to the settlement of certain employee obli-
gations and the transfer of certain assets. Following the Distribution,
the Company had identified approximately $15 million recorded in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets that was primarily related to certain
accounts receivable balances due from Lucent and certain fixed
assets, which the Company has agreed will remain with Lucent. Since
these assets, among other resolved issues, relate to the original cap-
ital contribution by Lucent, the Company reduced additional paid-in
capital in fiscal 2001 for the net effect of these adjustments. 

O T H E R  R E L AT E D  PA R T Y  T R A N S A C T I O N S

Jeffrey A. Harris has been a Director of Avaya since October 2, 2000.
Mr. Harris is a Member and Senior Managing Director of Warburg
Pincus LLC and a general partner of Warburg, Pincus & Co. Each of
Warburg Pincus LLC and Warburg, Pincus & Co. is an affiliate of
Warburg Pincus Equity Partners L.P. Mr. Harris was designated for
election to the Company’s Board of Directors by Warburg Pincus
Equity Partners, L.P. and its affiliates pursuant to the terms of the
equity investment described in Note 8. Henry B. Schacht has been a
Director of Avaya since September 30, 2000. Mr. Schacht is currently
on a leave of absence as a managing director and senior advisor of
Warburg Pincus LLC but has not been designated for election to the
Company’s Board of Directors by Warbug Pincus LLC or its affiliates. 

During fiscal 2000, a privately held business, of which Mr. Schacht
holds an 80% equity interest and of which his son is the controlling
stockholder, purchased and paid for call center equipment and con-
sulting services from the Company for a total of approximately $1 mil-
lion. This business has continued to purchase routine services from
the Company on a time and materials basis.

1 7 .  C O M M I T M E N T S  A N D  C O N T I N G E N C I E S

From time to time the Company is involved in legal proceedings aris-
ing in the ordinary course of business. Other than as described below,
the Company believes there is no litigation pending that could have,
individually or in the aggregate, a material adverse effect on its finan-
cial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

Y E A R  2 0 0 0  A C T I O N S

Three separate purported class action lawsuits are pending against
Lucent, one in state court in West Virginia, one in federal court in 
the Southern District of New York and another in federal court in the
Southern District of California. The case in New York was filed 
in Januar y 1999 and, after being dismissed, was refiled in
September 2000. The case in West Virginia was filed in April 1999
and the case in California was filed in June 1999, and amended in
2000, to include Avaya as a defendant. The Company may also be
named a party to the other actions and, in any event, has assumed
the obligations of Lucent for all of these cases under the Contribution
and Distribution Agreement. All three actions are based upon claims
that Lucent sold products that were not Year 2000 compliant, mean-
ing that the products were designed and developed without consider-
ing the possible impact of the change in the calendar from December
31, 1999 to January 1, 2000. The complaints allege that the sale of
these products violated statutory consumer protection laws and con-
stituted breaches of implied warranties. A class has not been certi-
fied in any of the three cases and, to the extent a class is certified in
any of the cases, the Company expects that class to constitute those
enterprises that purchased the products in question. The complaints
seek, among other remedies, compensatory damages, punitive dam-
ages and counsel fees in amounts that have not yet been specified.
Although the Company believes that the outcome of these actions will
not adversely affect its financial position, results of operations or
cash flows, if these cases are not resolved in a timely manner, they will
require expenditure of significant legal costs related to their defense. 

C O U P O N  P R O G R A M  C L A S S  A C T I O N

In April 1998, a class action was filed against Lucent in state court in
New Jersey, alleging that Lucent improperly administered a coupon
program resulting from the settlement of a prior class action. The
plaintiffs allege that Lucent improperly limited the redemption of the
coupons from dealers by not allowing them to be combined with other
volume discount offers, thus limiting the market for the coupons. The
Company has assumed the obligations of Lucent for these cases
under the Contribution and Distribution Agreement. The complaint
alleges breach of contract, fraud and other claims and the plaintiffs
seek compensatory and consequential damages, interest and attor-
neys’ fees. The parties have entered into a proposed settlement
agreement pending final approval by the court.

L U C E N T  S E C U R I T I E S  L I T I G AT I O N

In November 2000, three purported class actions were filed against
Lucent in the Federal District Court for the District of New Jersey alleg-
ing violations of the federal securities laws as a result of the facts dis-
closed in Lucent’s announcement on November 21, 2000 that it had
identified a revenue recognition issue affecting its financial results for
the fourth quarter of fiscal 2000. The actions purport to be filed on
behalf of purchasers of Lucent common stock during the period from
October 10, 2000 (the date Lucent originally reported these financial
results) through November 21, 2000. 



The above actions have been consolidated with other purported
class actions filed against Lucent on behalf of its stockholders in
January 2000 and are pending in the Federal District Court for the
District of New Jersey. The Company understands that Lucent has
filed its Answer to the Fifth Consolidated Amended and Supplemental
Class Action Complaint in the consolidated action. The plaintiffs
allege that they were injured by reason of certain alleged false and
misleading statements made by Lucent in violation of the federal
securities laws. The consolidated cases were initially filed on behalf
of stockholders of Lucent who bought Lucent common stock between
October 26,1999 and January 6, 2000, but the consolidated complaint
was amended to include purported class members who purchased
Lucent common stock up to November 21, 2000. A class has not yet
been certified in the consolidated actions. The plaintiffs in all these
stockholder class actions seek compensatory damages plus interest
and attorneys’ fees. 

Any liability incurred by Lucent in connection with these stock-
holder class action lawsuits may be deemed a shared contingent lia-
bility under the Contribution and Distribution Agreement and, as a
result, the Company would be responsible for 10% of any such liability
in excess of $50 million. All of these actions are in the early stages of
litigation and an outcome cannot be predicted and, as a result, there
can be no assurance that these cases will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s financial position, results of opera-
tions or cash flows. 

L I C E N S I N G  M E D I AT I O N

In March 2001, a third party licensor made formal demand for alleged
royalty payments which it claims the Company owes as a result of a
contract between the licensor and the Company’s predecessors, ini-
tially entered into in 1995, and renewed in 1997. The contract pro-
vides for mediation of disputes followed by binding arbitration if the
mediation does not resolve the dispute. The licensor claims that the
Company owes royalty payments for software integrated into certain
of the Company’s products. The licensor also alleges that the
Company has breached the governing contract by not honoring a right
of first refusal related to development of fax software for next genera-
tion products. The Company engaged in mediation with the licensor,
but did not resolve this matter. At this point, an outcome in any future
proceeding cannot be predicted and, as a result, there can be no
assurance that this case will not have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows. 

E N V I R O N M E N TA L  M AT T E R S

The Company is subject to a wide range of governmental require-
ments relating to employee safety and health and to the handling and
emission into the environment of various substances used in its oper-
ations. The Company is subject to certain provisions of environmental
laws, particularly in the U.S., governing the cleanup of soil and ground-
water contamination. Such provisions impose liability for the costs of
investigating and remediating releases of hazardous materials at cur-
rently or formerly owned or operated sites of the Company. In certain
circumstances, this liability may also include the cost of cleaning up

historical contamination, whether or not caused by the Company. The
Company is currently conducting investigation and/or cleanup of
known contamination at approximately five of the Company’s facilities
either voluntarily or pursuant to government directives. 

It is often difficult to estimate the future impact of environmental
matters, including potential liabilities. The Company has estab-
lished financial reserves to cover environmental liabilities where
they are probable and reasonably estimable. Reserves for esti-
mated losses from environmental matters are, depending on the
site, based primarily upon internal or third party environmental stud-
ies and the extent of contamination and the type of required
cleanup. Although the Company believes that its reserves are ade-
quate to cover known environmental liabilities, there can be no
assurance that the actual amount of environmental liabilities will
not exceed the amount of reserves for such matters or will not have
a material adverse ef fect on the Company’s financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

C O N D I T I O N A L  R E P U R C H A S E  O B L I G AT I O N S

Avaya sells product to various distributors that may obtain financing
from unaffiliated third party lending institutions. In the event the lending
institution repossesses the distributor’s inventory of Avaya products,
Avaya is obligated to repurchase such inventory from the lending insti-
tution. The repurchase amount is equal to the price originally paid to
Avaya by the lending institution for the inventory. The Company’s obliga-
tion to repurchase from the lending institution terminates 180 days
from the date of invoicing by Avaya to the distributor. During the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2001, there were no repurchases made by
the Company under such agreements. There can be no assurance that
the Company will not be obligated to repurchase inventory under these
arrangements in the future.

L E A S E S

The Company leases land, buildings and equipment under agree-
ments that expire in various years through 2019. Rental expense
under operating leases was $194 million, $176 million and $146
million for the years ended September 30, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. The table below shows the future minimum lease pay-
ments due under non-cancelable operating leases as of September
30, 2001.

Year Ended September 30,
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

Later
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 Years Total

������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� ������������������������� �������������������������

(dollars in millions)

$197 $153 $83 $56 $41 $236 $766

The Company also has sales-type and direct financing leases for
certain products. Lease payment receivables under such agreements
were $12 million and $35 million as of September 30, 2001 and
2000, respectively. The future minimum lease payments to be received
under sales-type and direct financing leases as of September 30,
2001 expire in fiscal 2005 and are not material to the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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1 8 .  Q U A R T E R L Y  I N F O R M A T I O N  ( U N A U D I T E D )

Fiscal Year Quarters
������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

First Second Third Fourth Total
���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ���������������������������������� ����������������������������������

(dollars and shares in millions, except per share amounts)

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,  2001

Revenue $1,785 $1,852 $1,714 $ 1,442 $6,793
Gross margin 757 819 731 589 2,896
Business restructuring and related charges(1) 23 182 66 566 837
Net income (loss) 16 (64) 24 (328) (352)
Earnings (loss) per share – Basic $ 0.03 $ (0.25) $ 0.06 $ (1.17) $ (1.33)
Earnings (loss) per share – Diluted $ 0.03 $ (0.25) $ 0.06 $ (1.17) $ (1.33)
Stock price (2):

High $ 22.94 $ 19.24 $ 17.06 $ 14.40 $ 22.94
Low $ 10.00 $ 9.88 $ 10.30 $ 9.39 $ 9.39

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30,  2000

Revenue $1,850 $1,945 $1,899 $ 2,038 $7,732
Gross margin 833 798 802 816 3,249
Business restructuring and related charges(1) – – – 684 684
Net income (loss) 69 66 33 (543) (375)
Earnings (loss) per share – Basic $ 0.26 $ 0.25 $ 0.12 $ (1.95) $ (1.39)
Earnings (loss) per share – Diluted $ 0.25 $ 0.24 $ 0.12 $ (1.95) $ (1.39)

(1) These charges represent costs associated with the Company’s restructuring plan to improve profitability and business performance as a stand-alone company.

(2) There were approximately 1,082,055 registered holders of the Company’s common stock as of December 5, 2001. The Company’s common stock began “when issued trading” on September 18,     

2000 and began “regular way trading” on September 30, 2000. The high and low stock price during this period was $26.00 and $18.81, respectively.

1 9 .  S U B S E Q U E N T  E V E N T S

S E C U R I T I Z AT I O N  O F  A C C O U N T S  R E C E I VA B L E

On October 3, 2001, the financial institution participating in the
receivables purchase agreement granted the Company a waiver from
a covenant that measures the ratio of certain unpaid receivables as a
percentage of the aggregate outstanding balance of all designated
receivables. The waiver effectively increases the ratio required by the
covenant for each of the individual months of September through
December 2001. Non-compliance with the required ratio would entitle
the financial institution to exercise its rights under the agreement,
including an early liquidation of the outstanding cash proceeds.

LY O N S  D E B T  O F F E R I N G  ( U N A U D I T E D )

On October 31, 2001, the Company sold through an underwritten
public offering under a shelf registration statement an aggregate prin-
cipal amount at maturity of approximately $821 million of Liquid Yield
Option™ Notes (LYONs) due in 2021. On November 16, 2001, the
Company sold an additional $123 million aggregate principal amount
at maturity of LYONs pursuant to the exercise of the underwriter’s
overallotment option. The net proceeds of approximately $447 million
were used to refinance a portion of the Company’s outstanding com-
mercial paper. Underwriting fees for these transactions amounted to
$13 million, which will be recorded as deferred financing costs and
amortized to interest expense over a three-year period representing
the first date on which the holders may require us to purchase all or a
portion of their LYONs. The LYONs were issued at a $484 million dis-
count that will accrue daily at a rate of 3.625% per year calculated on

a semiannual bond equivalent basis. The Company will not make peri-
odic cash payments of interest on the LYONs. Instead, the original
issue discount will be recorded as interest expense and represents
the accretion of the LYONs issue price to its maturity value. The origi-
nal issue discount will cease to accrue on the LYONs upon maturity,
conversion, or purchase by the Company at the option of the holder or
redemption. The LYONs are unsecured obligations that rank equally in
right of payment with all existing and future unsecured and unsubordi-
nated indebtedness of Avaya. 

The LYONs are convertible into 35,333,073 shares of Avaya com-
mon stock at any time on or before the maturity date. The conversion
rate may be adjusted for certain reasons, but will not be adjusted for
accrued original issue discount. Upon conversion, the holder will not
receive any cash payment representing accrued original issue dis-
count. Accrued original issue discount will be considered paid by 
the shares of common stock received by the holder of the LYONs
on conversion.

Avaya may redeem all or a portion of the LYONs for cash at any
time on or after October 31, 2004 at a price equal to the sum of the
issue price and accrued original issue discount on the LYONs as of
the applicable redemption date. Conversely, holders may require the
Company to purchase all or a portion of their LYONs on the third, fifth
and tenth anniversary from the original issue date at a price equal to
the sum of the issue price and accrued original issue discount on the
LYONs as of the applicable purchase date. The Company may, at its
option, elect to pay the purchase price in cash or shares of common
stock, or any combination thereof.



IBC1.

CORPORATE  INFORMAT ION

COMPANY HEADQUARTERS
Avaya Inc.
211 Mount Airy Road 
Basking Ridge, NJ 07920
Toll free: (800) 784-6104 
Outside the U.S.: (908) 953-6000
Investor Relations: (908) 953-7504
www.avaya.com

AVAYA SHARES
The shares of Avaya Inc. Common
Stock are listed on the New York
Stock Exchange with the symbol AV.

ANNUAL MEETING OF
SHAREHOLDERS
Tuesday, February 26, 2002
9:00 a.m. EST 
Raritan Valley Community College
Route 28 and Lamington Road
North Branch, New Jersey 08876

TRANSFER AGENT AND
REGISTRAR
Please direct communications
regarding individual stock records
and address changes to:
The Bank of New York
28 East 28th Street, 8th Floor
New York, NY 10016

Toll free: (866) 22-AVAYA
International Number: 
(908) 769-9871
TDD/TTY Line: (800) 711-7072 
E-mail: avshareholders@bankofny.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT
Securities analysts and investors
should contact: Derrick Vializ, 
Vice President, Investor Relations,
at the Company’s headquarters, or
by calling (908) 953-7500. 

ANNUAL REPORT AND 
10-K INFORMATION
Shareholders may obtain, without
charge, a copy of the Company’s
2001 Annual Report on Form 10-K
as filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission by writing to
Investor Relations at the
Company’s headquarters.

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
1301 Avenue of the Americas
New York, NY 10019-6013
(646) 471-4000

NOTE ON TRADEMARKS
Except where indicated, all
trademarks identified by ® or ™
are registered trademarks 
or trademarks, respectively, of
Avaya Inc. Palm is a trademark 
of Palm, Inc. MasterCard is a
trademark of MasterCard
International Incorporated. Alliance
Data Systems is a trademark of
Alliance Data Systems Inc. FIFA
World Cup 
is a trademark of FIFA. Liquid Yield
Option Notes is a trademark of
Merrill Lynch & Co., Inc. 

©2001 Avaya Inc. All Rights Reserved.

Avaya is the Official Convergence Communication Provider for the 2002
FIFA World Cup™ Korea/Japan; the FIFA Women’s World Cup, China PR
2003; and the 2006 FIFA World Cup, hosted by Germany. Avaya is provid-
ing secure data and voice networks for all 20 venues and International
Media Centers in Korea and Japan. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

JEFFREY A .  HARRIS

46, Member and Senior Managing
Director of Warburg Pincus LLC and a
general partner of Warburg, Pincus & Co. 

MARK LESL IE

56, Chairman of the Board of Veritas
Software Corporation. 

DONALD K.  PETERSON

52, Avaya President and Chief
Executive Officer. 

PATRIC IA  F.  RUSSO

48, Avaya Chairman of the Board of
Directors.
President and Chief Operating Officer 
of Eastman Kodak Company. 

HENRY B.  SCHACHT

67, Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Lucent Technologies Inc. 

DANIEL  C.  STANZIONE

56, Director of Quest Diagnostics
Incorporated.  

FRANKLIN A .  THOMAS

67, Consultant to the TFF Study Group
and Chairman of the Oversight Board of
the September 11th Fund.

SALES LEADERSHIP TEAM

KEVIN P.  COOK

Vice President, 
Global Alliances

AVERELL ELL IOTT

Vice President, Major Accounts and 
Global Sales Operations

ELIZABETH GARCIA

Regional President, 
Caribbean and Latin America 

MICHAEL M.  K IEFER

Regional President, 
North America

MARK R.  LE IGH

Regional President, 
Asia Pacific 

PATRICK LELORIEUX

Regional President, 
Europe, Middle East and Africa 

EXECUTIVE LEADERSHIP TEAM

DONALD K.  PETERSON

President and Chief Executive Officer 

STEVE AARONSON

Vice President, Public Relations and
Investor Relations 

ORI  BENDORI

Vice President, Enterprise
Internetworking Systems 

STEVE CLARK

Group Vice President, 
Connectivity Solutions

PAMELA F.  CRAVEN

Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

YVONNE CURL

Vice President and 
Chief Marketing Officer 

MICHAEL A .  DENNIS

Group Vice President, Services 

MARYANNE D IMARZO

Senior Vice President, 
Human Resources 

DAVID P.  JOHNSON

Senior Vice President, 
Sales and Marketing

VIC LANGFORD

Vice President, Unified 
Communication Solutions 

KEITH LARSON

Vice President, Customer 
Relationship Management 

STEVE MARKMAN

Group Vice President, 
Applications 

KARYN MASHIMA

Senior Vice President, 
Strategy and Technology 

GARRY K.  MCGUIRE,  SR.

Chief Financial Officer and 
Senior Vice President, Operations 

RAVI  SETHI

President, Avaya Labs

MICHAEL C.  THURK

Group Vice President, 
Systems 

MICKY S.C.  TSUI

Vice President, 
Converged Enterprise Solutions

LEADERSH IP
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communications that enable 
enterprises to excel


